
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
GENERAL MEETING 

Wednesday July 18, 2018 – 10:00 AM 
Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 

94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 
www.co.curry.or.us 

Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are 
held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance 
notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 

AGENDA 
Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public.  

For public comment, a completed speaker’s slip must be submitted prior to start of the meeting. 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. ADOPTION/AMENDMENT OF THE AGENDA (12 minutes)

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (3 minutes per person; 30 minute limit for all public comment)

4. CONSENT CALENDAR (Items in the Consent Calendar may be removed for separate discussion 
and/or action at the request of any Commissioner) (5 minutes)

A. Minutes Special Meeting April 25, 2018 (Packet Page 3)
B. Contract with True Lock & Security for Installation of New Door Locks – Eric Hanson, 

Facilities Director  (Packet Page  11)
C. County Administrator Credit Card Request   (Packet Page 19)
D. Community Development Report June, 2018  (Packet Page 20)
E. Appoint Curry County Budget Officer (Packet Page 23)
F. Appoint 2 Members to Coos-Curry Housing Authority (Packet Page 391)
G. Intergovernmental Agreements (IGA) for Dispatch    (Packet Page 26)
H. Surveyor Monthly Report June 2018 (Packet Page 55)
I. Attorney Retainer Agreement Opioid Lawsuit (Packet Page 58)

5. PRESENTATIONS – Louise Kallstrom, County Accountant
A. Curry County Public Service Transit District Audit (15 minutes)  (Packet Page 66)
B. Curry County Audit (30 minutes)  (Packet Page 104)

6. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS/APPOINTMENTS
A. Curry County Public Transit Service District (CCPTSD) Advisory Committee - Kathryn 

Bernhardt, General Manager CCPTSD  (5 minutes)  (Packet Page 267)
i. Dissolve Current Committee

ii. Approve by-laws Forming New Committee
iii. Appoint New Committee Members

B. Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee Appointments  (5 minutes)  (Packet Page 334)

7. PUBLIC HEARING 1:00PM
Finance Supplemental Budgets for 2017-2018 Fiscal Year (FY) (40 minutes)  (Packet Page 347) 

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


8. OLD BUSINESS/PENDING ACTIONS
A. 2nd Reading Parks Recreation Advisory Committee Ordinance – John Huttl, County Counsel 

(10 minutes)  (Packet Page 375)
B. Grant Amendment Brookings Head Start– John Huttl, County Counsel  (5 minutes)  (Packet 

Page 376)

9. DISCUSSION/BOARD DIRECTION/DECISION
Notice and Set Hearing on Petition to Annex Territory to Harbor Water Public Utility District (PUD)
– John Huttl, County Counsel  (10 minutes)  (Packet Page 382)

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS/MEETING SCHEDULE   (5 minutes)
A. Vacancies

i. Two (2)  - Coos-Curry Housing Authority Terms Expiring  January 3, 2021 and April 
29, 2022

ii. Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee
iii. One (1)  - Mountain Drive Special Road District Term Expires December 31, 2019

B. July 25, 2018
i. Workshop 10:00AM  - Commissioners’ Hearing Room
ii. July 25 – 28, 2018  Curry County Fair

C. August 1, 2018  General Meeting 10:00AM  – Commissioners’ Hearing Room
D. August 15, 2018 General Meeting 10:00AM  – Commissioners’ Hearing Room

11. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR UPDATES  - Clark Schroeder, County Administrator  (15 
minutes)
Travel Policy Compliance  (20 minutes)  (Packet Page 388 )

12. COMMISSIONER UPDATES    (15 minutes)
A. Commissioner Huxley
B. Commissioner Boice
C. Commissioner Gold

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION - Clark Schroeder, County Administrator
192.610 2(d) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on 
labor negotiations (25 minutes)   (Packet Page 398)

14. ADJOURN 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Meeting Minutes  
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa: 07-18-18  DEPARTMENT: Admin  TIME NEEDED: 5  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: C. Schroeder    PHONE/EXT:  x3287 TODAY’S DATE:  07-12-18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Minutes for approval  
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Special Meeting of June 13, 2018  
(2)    
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR   BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  CONSENT   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Page 1 of 7 
MINUTES 

April 25, 2018 Special Meeting – 1:30P 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS 

SPECIAL MEETING 
Wednesday, April 25, 2018 – 1:30PM 

Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 
94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 

www.co.curry.or.us  
  

Please note – meeting starts at 1:30PM  
 

Present: Chair Gold, Vice Chair Huxley County Counsel Huttl, Minute Clerk Jezuit 
By Phone: Commissioner Boice 

 
MINUTES 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Gold 1:30P 

 
2. ADOPTION/AMENDMENT OF THE AGENDA {1:31P to 1:33P} 
Huttl  I wanted to add Port of Port Orford Grant application.  
Gold It will be added after Agenda Item 5. 
Huttl I also want to make announcements before we adjourn. 
 
1:32P Huxley Motion to amend agenda Second Gold  Carried Unanimously 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT {1:33P to 1:35P} 
David Barnes stated  

• He wants to express his dismay about hiring a new County Administrator.  
• He addressed concerns about the General Meeting on April 4, 2018 and the Meet 

and Greet meeting of April 6, 2018 
Gold I am not going to respond.  

 
4. COUNTY ASSESSMENT FUNCTION FUNDING ASSISTANCE (CAFFA)  

ANNUAL GRANT  – Jim Kolen, County Assessor  {1:35P to 2:06P} 
Kolen stated he has a CAFFA grant re-application.  This application does include 
$125,000 for Curry County pilot project funds. 
Gold asked is that over and above the regular CAFFA grant? 
Kolen replied yes. Are there any questions about documents submitted?  
Huxley asked Kolen to explain the relevant facts and go through some of the facts with 
some expansion on this possible program, the Curry Pilot Project. 
Kolen responded in the group I’ve been working with, I loosely termed it the Curry Pilot 
Project. We have applied for the CAFFA each year, going back to 1992.  We have 
qualified for the grant every year since inception. The DOR (Department of Revenue) has 

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


Board of Commissioners – 02/10/2016 Special Meeting 
Page 2 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided 
upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541-247-3296 if you have questions 
regarding this notice. 
 

valid concerns about our current levels of funding and taxation stating, “We recognize 
significant financial challenges to the county and difficult decisions.” 
Gold asked what do they consider adequate? 
Kolen stated  

• We have some physical reappraisals effort going on, but we’re on a 15 to 20 year 
cycle to see every property in the County.  

• We are picking up all of the new construction we’re aware of. The Building 
Permits are our discovery tools for finding where there is new construction taking 
place in the County.   

• We use the physical re-appraisal to discover things that have taken place without 
building permits.   

• We’re getting our ratio studies done, turning the roll, and collecting tax payments. 
Gold They did not give you a specific number of years to continue getting the CAFFA 
grant?  
Kolen replied they did not. The law used to be 6 year reappraisal cycle. With measures 5 
and 50, that law went by the wayside. We don’t know how much you can get behind. 
We’ve been able to identify some of the new construction. If we get down to a 6 year 
cycle, we can collect taxes retroactive 6 years. There are some people who are building 
homes without building permits.  Decks, asphalt or concrete driveways, and small sheds 
do not require building permits 
Huxley asked if Kolen could you explain a little bit more about the Pilot project? Is the 
$125,000 included in the numbers? This project goes before Oregon E Board (Oregon 
Emergency Board) in May. Would you explain mechanics there? 
Kolen replied our representative for our area plans to take this to the Oregon E Board. I 
am not sure of their make-up. They have the authority to approve expenditures outside 
their normal budget process.  
Huxley stated this is clearly on the state level. Is it made up of State legislators only? 
Kolen replied that is his understanding. 
Gold asked about FTEs (Full Time Equivalent).  This is on Form 4. You started with 
FTEs at 1.4 and then went to 1.6. You’re going from 1529 to 1940 by adding .2 FTE’s. 
How did you come up with 1940? If you’re working at the same rate, I came up with 
1747.   
Kolen explained the special assessment is an area where we’ll see the most minimal 
change. If you go to the 5th line of special assessment qualification, you’ll see our actual 
number of accounts we disqualified last year was 86. With more resources on that, we 
would expect to have as many as 200 as result of this pilot project. If we’re going from .1 
FTE to .3 FTE, you could take the 86 and triple it, but that may not work out either. I’m 
just trying to be conservative with the estimate here. 
Huxley Where on these different forms can we find out what page we’re talking about? 
There are about 23,000 properties. Where might it be shown how many of the 23,000 
appraisals are made per year? I assume the increase is due to amounts of the grants and 
the number of people you may add.  
Kolen go to form 4, 1st section, the 1st line under line number 1 is new construction.  Last 
year we visited 1100 new construction accounts. We’re estimating 1250 new construction 
accounts this year. Under number of FTE, by activity, there’s about a full time equivalent 
on picking up those 1250 accounts. The big change is under category #3, real property 



Board of Commissioners – 02/10/2016 Special Meeting 
Page 3 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided 
upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541-247-3296 if you have questions 
regarding this notice. 
 

valuation and physical reappraisal. This year we picked up about 1200 accounts, next 
year we’re planning on picking up an additional 1250 accounts. 
Gold stated that fits with proportion or close to it. My main concern is that we do 
increase the appraisals so that we have more revenue coming in. 
Huxley observed that on those 2 line items, between new construction and physical 
reappraisal, there were about 2300 and by adding one full-time person then that’s going 
from 2300 to 3600. 
Kolen stated  

• There some other small pickups citing special assessments which add about 
another 100 or so there.  

• We’re expecting to find more omitted properties. Every time we find a property 
built without a permit, we go through an omitted property process to put it on the 
roll and to go back 5 years.   

• When people get those letters, it takes time to explain what’s going on there. 
Huxley asked about how many properties are appraised a year right now? What’s the 
estimate for 18-19 FY? 
Kolen replied over past few years, we’ve averaged 2450 per year with our current 
staffing levels. The actual amount is 2300 this year.  
Huxley stated it’s more than just a little more than 1 FTE.  
Kolen replied we’re basically figuring we’re going to get about 1.25 FTE’s in appraisal 
resource. The other .25 FTE will be support.  
Gold asked does support person get into appraisals or is it very restrictive in the way they 
ask you to do it? 
Kolen responded these are estimates, and they understand these are estimates.  We keep 
track of activity that actually occurred in the current year.  
Huxley asked which form has approximate amount of capital request? 
Kolen Form 7.  
Huxley asked which column is that? 
Kolen stated the total request is the number on the bottom, and you will also see that 
number showing up on form 8, if you approve this.  
Gold asked if that was the $930,535? 
Kolen replied we sent in a correction a day or so ago. The corrected amount is actually 
$948,405. 
Huxley asked what exactly is that number?  That’s not the amount you’re going to 
receive on the grant? 
Kolen That amount is the amount Curry County will expend on these various assessment, 
taxation, and distribution functions which includes the Assessor’s office, IT, Tax 
Collectors office, a portion of Treasurer for distribution, budget for Board of Property 
Tax Appeals, and some administrative expenses written into that. 
Gold stated it looks like basically your whole budget? 
Kolen replied it is.   
Huxley asked if the newer number is $948,405?  On this number what is the net 
increase? What is the net result of this actual grant that includes the $125,000?  What 
would it be approximately this year if you take this grant on the document as it exists? 
Kolen replied we  

• Get about 20% of that amount from the CAFFA grant, which is an estimate, an 
approximate number. They never land on that 20% amount.  



Board of Commissioners – 02/10/2016 Special Meeting 
Page 4 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided 
upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541-247-3296 if you have questions 
regarding this notice. 
 

• Want to include the pilot project in this request, too, because now is the time to do 
it, and we will get 20% of that money as well.  

Gold asked the amount of the CAFFA grant would be $189,681?  And then you get 
another 20%?  
Kolen replied no, we will get approximately 20% back on what we certify as expenditure 
for assessment and tax collection. The $125,000 is included in the $948,000 expenditure 
amount.  
Huxley stated so that’s $190,000 and that includes the $125,000. 
Kolen replied yes, in the expenditure amount. 
Huxley stated the net request is coming to be about $190,000. 
Kolen replied if we have to go back and take out the $125,000, we’ll get about $165,000. 
Huxley stated I think last year they had been running similar. So this year, the way 
you’re planning to distribute the personnel to do these different evaluations and 
appraisals is going to significantly increase from 2450 to 3700. 
Kolen replied yes, that’s the intent. I’m going to go back to Form 4. What we’re now 
talking about is just the re-appraisal effort. We’re not talking about anything in section 1, 
which is new construction.  Where we’re increasing is we are just about doubling our re-
appraisal effort.  
Gold asked section 3, right? 
Kolen stated if you take the total number of accounts divided by 1250, you come up with 
just over 15 years. If you use 2450, you come up with a number just over 7 years.  
Huxley It’s 19 years if you took 23,000 divided by 1200. 
Kolen stated however, some of those 23,000 accounts are exempt from taxation. We 
don’t appraise them for the most part.   
Gold stated by increasing it to 2450, you’ll be able to come down to about a 7 year cycle, 
which is certainly better than where we are at now.  
Kolen stated over time we would expect the non permitted property value out there   
that’ll we will collect, after 7 years, would be 3 to 5 times what the annual expense 
[collection] is. 
Boice asked that’s about 200 appraisals a month? {inaudible}, that’s not too bad.   
Kolen replied yes.  And in our business we are moving quicker than a fee appraisal does 
for your mortgage. Assessor’s office appraiser puts a lot more work into it.  
Gold What percentage of the appraisals that you do allow you to get into the house? 
Kolen answered 25 to 30%, maybe. But for most you can tell what you’re dealing with 
by looking at the outside of the house.  
  
2:05P Boice  Motion to approve the CAFFA  grant  Second Huxley   Carried 
Unanimously 
 
Kolen asked Huttl, the Board is moving to approve the Resolution for a total expenditure 
of $948, 405 for the 2018-2019 CAFFA Grant application, right? 
Gold stated she is sure that’s what Boice stated. 
Boice replied correct.  

 
5. CURRY COUNTY CODE COORDINATION WITH FEDERAL AGENCIES -- 

Commissioner Boice  {2:06P to 2:19P}  



Board of Commissioners – 02/10/2016 Special Meeting 
Page 5 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided 
upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541-247-3296 if you have questions 
regarding this notice. 
 

Boice  {Inaudible} Tim Palmer’s concerns. This is our responsibility to follow through 
to let citizens know as elected officials we’re engaged.  
{The Board did not get a letter from Palmer.} 
Huxley stated I understood Palmer’s concerns since initially this was the only item 
scheduled for the workshop today at 10AM. Therefore this item was moved from the 
workshop to the Special meeting so that Brandt Media started at 1:30P. I think that’s an 
explanation more to Palmer as far as why it was under Special meeting. There was no 
intent to make any decision on this topic today.   
Gold stated that was my understanding as well.  
Boice stated he does not sense any reason for delay here.  
Huttl stated he had Jezuit do an examination on the history of this item. There are 2 
paragraphs Boice highlighted that upon adoption of this Ordinance in 2013, the County 
will issue letters seeking coordination with these federal agencies. Since there was 
already direction for Staff to do so, it falls under BOC office staff and County 
Administrator to follow up with letters. 
Boice stated we had discussed this at a general meeting. It is an important housekeeping 
matter. Palmer has said the Commissioners should stick to their jobs. This is basically an 
opportunity to reach out to some agencies and also to tell citizens we’re going to work 
with State and Federal agencies. 
Gold Boice, you want us to send letters out to these agencies?  
Boice replied, per the 2013 Ordinance, our responsibility is to simply notify these 
agencies. I’m not really thrilled with taking unnecessary delays. 
Huttl stated the requirement for coordination is found in several federal laws. The 
Board’s motivation in 2013 was there was a sense in the early 2000’s if the federal 
agencies were not being pro-active, then the local jurisdictions decided to notify them we 
wanted to coordinate with them. It’s really just a matter of being on record and letting 
federal agencies know we want to communicate with them. What Boice is saying is that 
this is a pre-existing County rule, and we should do what we’re saying we should do.  
Gold stated she does not have a problem with that. Is that what you, Boice, want us to do 
to communicate with these federal agencies? 
Boice replied yes. This is illustrated by Chetco Bar Fire. They were delayed in properly 
responding to us. We’re the elected officials here.  
Huxley Huttl, when you mention staff not able to find any letter. Where was that 
referenced in the ordinance? 
Huttl replied it is on page 20 on the agenda packet and on page 3 of the ordinance.  It’s 
been on the books since 2013. It’s still good. 
Gold stated it’s a request to let these federal agencies know if something affects our 
County, we want to participate. 
Boice stated that’s well said. 
Huttl stated that’s all we had for this item for the workshop. If nothing further, staff will 
get to work on putting through those communications.  Boice is again reminding us of 
things we can be doing. 
Gold stated we are not in need of a motion 
Huttl stated it’s already been directed. 
 
6. PORT OF PORT ORFORD GRANT APPLICATION – Tom Calvanese, 

President Port of Port Orford Commission {2:20P to 2:27P} 



Board of Commissioners – 02/10/2016 Special Meeting 
Page 6 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided 
upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541-247-3296 if you have questions 
regarding this notice. 
 

Tom Calvanese stated I am the President Port of Port Orford Commission.  Thank you 
for making time your agenda for our request for a letter of support for a redevelopment 
project. The deadline is April 30, 2018, and I appreciate you’re making time for this.  
Gold requested Calvanese to tell the Board about the grant. 
Calvanese stated this grant will be in support of part of the funding for a project 
estimated to be in the neighborhood of $6,800,000 that will be a comprehensive upgrade 
to the Port’s infrastructure focusing on a Port owned and operated seawater system to  
support business that require that as an utility. This includes live fish and sea creatures 
being taken to food buyers. The live fish are high value. Alive, the fish fetch $6 to $7 a 
lb. Dead, they might fetch about $.60 to $1.00 /lb. The Port Orford fleet as a whole holds 
the bulk of live fish fishery permits. Many of those fish get transported to San Francisco 
Bay area. 
Gold are they kept alive on the way to San Francisco? 
Calvanese stated  

• They are kept alive in seawater. There are very few ports which can provide 
access to full strength seawater.  

• Another project that has more recently emerged is edible seaweed called dulse. 
Dulse is a red sea algae initially developed as a feed for an abalone farm in 
Hawaii and since then has emerged as a high value product for human 
consumption due to its nutritional value and ease of cultivation. Oregon Sea 
Farms has begun to cultivate that algae in Port Orford on the dock.  They also 
process red sea urchins using a single boat which harvests almost all the sea 
urchins in Oregon. Those products had been processed in Fort Bragg until 
recently. That outfit is looking into bringing back some of that processing to Port 
Orford. 

• Also a new buyer is setting up an additional buying station in Port Orford to 
purchase live product from Port Orford fishermen. As these kinds of projects 
sometimes go, word of mouth travels fast once people realize new opportunities 
are emerging.  

• I work for OSU (Oregon State University) as the station manager Port Orford 
OSU field station. We are consulting with technicians at the Hatfield Marine 
Science Center and will be advising the Port of the best approach on this scale of 
a sea water system. Also OSU has shown interest on issues of ocean acidification, 
domoic acid, and other challenges to our marine environment.   

2:27P Boice You have an excellent Board in effectiveness. It is a source of pride for our 
county. 
 
2:27P Huxley Motion to approve draft letter of support. Second Boice   Carried 
Unanimously 
  
Gold Announcements Huttl? {2:27P to 2:33P} 
Huttl  stated  

• Coos-Curry Emergency Forest Restoration program is offering Chetco Bar Fire 
assistance.  The sign up deadline is June 1, 2018.   Contact Bret Harris at 541 396 
4323 x 2 or Bret.harris@or.usda.gov .  

• Yesterday received media notice from Captain Espinoza regarding about Verizon 
Wireless 911 service.  

mailto:Bret.harris@or.usda.gov


Board of Commissioners – 02/10/2016 Special Meeting 
Page 7 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided 
upon request with 48 hours advance notification. Please call 541-247-3296 if you have questions 
regarding this notice. 
 

• On Saturday April 28 Curry County Sheriff’s Department participating in the 
national prescription drug take back program.  

 
7. ADJOURN 2:33P  
 
 
Meeting Minutes were approved on ______________, 2018.    
 
 
 
      
 
 
 

Curry County Board of Commissioners  
 
      
 

_________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner  
 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Contract with True Lock & Security for installation of 
new door locks for Courthouse and Annex Bldgs.  
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07-18-18  DEPARTMENT:  Maintenance  TIME NEEDED:  5 min.  
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: Eric Hanson    PHONE/EXT:x3384 TODAY’S DATE: 07-11-18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) New locks on all campus doors  
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) AGRS  
(2) Contract 
(3) Order approving contract  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:          
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


1 | O r d e r  f o r  C o n t r a c t  T r u e  L o c k  a n d  S e c u r i t y     
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 
 

In the Matter of an Order   ) 
Approving a Contract   ) 
Between Curry County   )  ORDER No. _______________ 
and Zach Tams, True Lock  ) 
& Security     )   
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the current key card system used for locking doors in the 
Courthouse and Annex Building is antiquated and it is not possible to purchase 
replacement parts; and  
 

WHEREAS, a new system will provide audit capabilities, as well as 
provide better security to the campus; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS HEREBY ORDERS approval of a contract with Zach Tams of 
True Lock & Security to change out and replace all the existing door locks in the 
Courthouse and Annex Building with a new system, as provided in the contract’s 
Exhibit “A”.   
 
 
 
DATED this 18th day of July, 2018. 
 

BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      
     ________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
Approved as to Form: 
 
     _________________________________ 
______________________ Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel  
     _________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 

















CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Community Development Activity Report 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:   07.18.2018 DEPARTMENT:  Community Development  
TIME NEEDED: 5 minutes 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON:  PHONE/EXT:  TODAY’S DATE:  
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Community Development Activity report 
(2)  
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


June  2018 Community Development Department Activity Report                                                                                                 
1 of 2 
 

 
 

Community Development Department  
June 2018 Activity Building, Economic Development, Planning 

 
Department Administration and funding 
- June revenue  – $20,923.58    - May  2018 activity report preparation 
- Meeting with multiple agencies regarding code enforcement 
- Work on two planning related code enforcement cases 
 
  Economic Development  
- Meeting with Dragonfly Farms owners 
- Meetings with County Manager regarding economic development  
- Curry County Housing task force meeting attendance 
- Phone participation in TSOC Board meeting 
- Meeting with County Manager and SCDC executive director and board member 
- Review of Brookings Economic Impact Analysis related to Chetco fire  
- Participation in region wide DLCD housing listening tour 

 
South Coast Development Council work:   
 
The South Coast Development Council’s mission is to promote and 
support businesses that provide quality jobs through responsible 
development on Oregon’s South Coast. 

 
Project Fire: Continuing to work with ECO Northwest to complete the economic impact 
study for the Chetco Bar Fire. There are several changes needed to be made to meet 
DCLD funding guidelines. Approximately 5 hours of time was spent directly related to 
working with the fire recovery.  
 
Regional Tourism: SCDC is representing Curry County in all the Regional Tourism 
Network meetings. The Oregon South Coast Regional Tourism Network (OSCRTN) was 
put together by investments from multiple tourism related entities to get a direction and 
add solidarity to all of the tourism efforts in the area. Focused on leveraging 
relationships, opportunities and dollars OSCRTN is working to create consensus around 
priorities that will set up other tourism organization for success, and focus our regional 
tourism organizations in a direction that will lay the groundwork to develop the Southern 
Oregon Coast into a destination. The Gold Beach City manager, Jodi Fritts, has been 
asked and accepted the invitation to also serve on the core team. This will increase 
Curry Counties input for the core team of OSCTRN. Approximately 7 hours was spent in 
this role. 



June  2018 Community Development Department Activity Report                                                                                                 
2 of 2 
 

 
Gold Beach Rotary:  SCDC gave a presentation to the Gold Beach Rotary with several 
business leaders in the room. From that presentation we have received 1 new business 
we are going to be working with that is trying to relocate to a more prominent location in 
town. 2 hours 
 
Gold Beach Mainstreet Program: Wrote letters of support for the Mainstreet program 
to help with grant funding.  1 Hour  
 
Partnership with Rural Development Institute: SCDC has negotiated a deal with RDI 
to get a team of “boots on the Ground” individuals to increase the amount of business 
interviews. RDI was granted funds from the Ford Family Foundation to pay for their time 
and expertise to help with the business interviews. These interviews will start in July and 
run through the end of August. 3.5 hours 
 
Individual business interviews.  Is helping the State of Oregon to interview non-
traded sector businesses to see how the state can better help these types of 
businesses. Currently most funding and help available from the state is only offered to 
traded sector (manufacturing) businesses. Among these business interviews were 
restaurants, healthcare centers, and retail locations. This will help pave the way for 
additional support from the state government in funding non-traded sector businesses.  
SCDC also helped write a business plan for an expansion for a business to take in front 
of funders. In June three companies were interviewed regarding lost revenue during last 
summer and early spring. 10 hours 
 
Planning Division 
- Permit activity:   1 CUP renewal, 3 Conditional use permits, 4 new address, and 
15 Planning Clearance reviews, 1 tentative partition plat 
- Administrative Permit processing, review of work by LCOG and communication 
with applicants on various projects, Director work on three CUP applications 
- Preparation of staff reports and presentation to BOC at June BOC meetings 
- Research, evaluation, letters, meetings with applicants and County Counsel 
regarding 23 lot subdivision. 
 
Building Division 
- Building Permits:   22     - Building Inspections: 115  
- Assembling of building division transition team in preparation for BO departure 
06.30 
- Phone meeting with city of Brookings regarding potential for shared building 
permit services 
- Director on site meeting with Nesika Beach water district representative 
- Phone calls and walk in visits - 400 served        



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: APPOINT COUNTY BUDGET OFFICER 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  July 18, 2018 DEPARTMENT: Finance             TIME NEEDED:  5 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON:                            TODAY’S DATE:        2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Louise Kallstrom as designated 
Budget Officer for Curry County to be approved by the Board of Commissioners 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Order 5011  
(2) Order 
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR   BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  CONSENT   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us




 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

 
In the Matter of the   ) 
Appointment of a Budget  ) ORDER NO. _________________ 
Officer for Curry County  ) 
 
 
 WHEREAS, ORS 294.331 provides that the governing body of each 
municipal corporation shall designate one person to serve as budget officer; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ORS 294.331 states that the budget officer acts under the 
direction of the chief executive of the governing body, or if none the Board, and 
prepares or supervises the preparation of the budget document; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the job description for the County Accountant (Finance 
Director) states that this person “is designated as the County Budget Officer”; 
and;  
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT the County 
Accountant is appointed as Budget Officer for Curry County. 
 
 DATED this 18th day of July, 2018.   
 
 
 
    BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
Approved as to Form: 
     
     ___________________________________ 
     Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
______________________ 
John Huttl, County Counsel 

___________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: IGA’s for Curry County Dispatch Services for FY 2018-
2019 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa: 7/18/18   DEPARTMENT: Sheriff TIME NEEDED: 5 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY:  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: IGA’s were already approved 
6/20/18, these are remaining four IGA’s that need BOC signatures. This is consent 
calendar only 
CONTACT PERSON: Sheriff PHONE/EXT: 3322  TODAY’S DATE: 7/12/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Sixes River Fire IGA 
(2) Agness Illahe Fire IGA 
(3) Cedar Valley/N Bank Rogue Fire IGA 
(4) Ophir Fire IGA 

INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:              Sheriff’s Office    
☒Send Printed Copy to:          Address:             94235 Moore St. Ste311    
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:  Gold Beach, OR 97444 

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


























































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Surveyor’s Report for June 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☐ No  ☐              
If No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa: July 18, 2018 DEPARTMENT: County Surveyor TIME NEEDED:  5 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: Reily Smith PHONE/EXT: 3225 TODAY’S DATE: July 3, 2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1)  
(2)  
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR   BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 CURRY COUNTY SURVEYOR MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
FOR JUNE, 2018 
 

County Surveyor & Department Specialist Activities: 
 
June was a normal month for Reily & Barbara.  Reily is trying to keep his hours down to stay 
within budget and have money needed for other office necessities.  As usual, Barbara is running 
the office efficiently and is able to take care of almost all customer inquiries and routine 
business. 
 
Barbara has also been listing coordinates and gathering information needed to start working on 
the Public Land Survey System (PLSS) Corner Restoration work on private lands in the Chetco 
Bar Fire area.  We purchased a new GPS hand-held unit that Barbara can load the coordinates on 
straight from the computer.  This new field unit ($200) should be very efficient since it is more 
sensitive than old ones and receives both U.S. GPS and Russian Glonass signals.  
 
Reily hopes to have two temporary part-time workers start on this restoration work the second 
week of July.  We will train them to search for, rehabilitate (setting signs, marker posts, etc.) and 
other procedures for some corners in the Hunter Creek area for a few days.  One of those corners 
has not been visited since 1944, when it was re-established after finding no evidence of its 
original location.  Then, they will start on the fire areas to check the PLSS corners.  If they have 
problems, it will be in the Brookings area and Reily can help them. 
 
One of the temporary part-time employees is Douglas Colton who is more mature and it is hoped 
he can continue (as funds allow) to do more corner perpetuation work.  The areas we also need to 
visit are those areas of private land ownership that have not been visited since before 1980.  
Some of these corners have not been visited since the 1930’s or longer.  Our priority will be on 
older more important corners.  The other employee is expected to be Geoffery (Jeff) Howard 
who is a college student.  Jeff can help Doug hike in with the needed materials and perform the 
needed work.  It is expected they will work 2, nine-hour days each week for the remainder of the 
summer. 
 
This corner restoration fieldwork is essential.  Part of the Survey Department’s funding comes 
from the Cornerstone Preservation Fund and we have completed most of the essential 
Cornerstone work we can do in the office.  In the past few years we have been able to get all the 
office material organized, scanned and almost all of it is available to the public online.  The 
Surveyor’s website combined with the GIS provides the citizens of Curry with an outstanding 
research vehicle to do almost all of the property research online. 
 
New Maps of Survey, Property Line Adjustments or Plats filed, scanned, copied and filed 
(all currently online):   
  
     3 Surveys were completed and filed in the north part of Curry County.   
     No Surveys were filed near Gold Beach. 
     2 Surveys were filed near Brookings. 
 



Deposits for June: = $1,170.00        
 
Reily Smith worked 35 hours in June. 
Barbara Colton worked 72 hours in June. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Reily Smith, County Surveyor 
Barbara Colton, Department Specialist 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Attorney Retainer Agreement Opioid Lawsuit  
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/2018 DEPARTMENT: BOC / Counsel TIME NEEDED: 5 mins 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON: J Huttl PHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 07/12/2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) At its last meeting, the Board 
directed staff to retain Tom D’Amore to represent the County in a multi district Federal 
litigation over opioid epidemic. This is the retainer agreement from that lawfirm and 
associated law firm.  Contingent fee, no cost to the county unless we obtain money 
judgment. In that event 25% of recovery, plus costs.   
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Contingency Fee Agreement, D’Amore, et al. 
(2) Order 
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  CONSENT   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


{00277833;1}  

CONTINGENT FEE CONTRACT  

W I T N E S S E T H:  

WHEREAS, CURRY COUNTY, OREGON (“CLIENT”) wishes to determine the 

feasibility of CLIENT bringing an action against the manufacturers, distributors, providers, 

and/or others responsible for the sale, marketing, and distribution of opioids, opiates, and similar 

pharmaceutical drugs for damages to the CLIENT arising out of aggressive marketing and 

distribution of said drugs; and 

WHEREAS, the CLIENT understands based upon the pendency of similar litigation 

pending in the United States that the CLIENT may have various viable causes of action under 

state and/or federal law for its damages; and  

WHEREAS, the CLIENT wishes to retain outside counsel to investigate and, if 

appropriate, commence litigation for CLIENT’s damages, with all work to be performed on a 

contingency fee basis and without the CLIENT advancing costs and expenses for such litigation; 

and  

WHEREAS, the CLIENT has decided that it wishes to engage D’AMORE LAW, 

WHALEY LAW FIRM, and LAW OFFICE OF THOMAS L. YOUNG (collectively, 

“Attorneys”), to investigate the viability of and if appropriate prosecute an action against such 

manufacturers; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises, and consent herein 

contained, the parties agree as follows; and   

1. Attorneys, for the consideration herein provided, agree to represent the CLIENT in 

connection with investigating and if appropriate bringing an action for CLIENT’s damages. At a 

minimum Attorneys shall provide the following services: work with CLIENT’s personnel to 

determine the costs that the CLIENT has incurred as a result of the over-prescription of opioids; 



{00277833;1} 2  

determine the viable causes of action available to the CLIENT; and determine which if any 

potential defendants that should be targeted in a lawsuit.  Attorneys will, on behalf of the 

CLIENT, bring a lawsuit against those parties identified by Attorneys, subject to approval of 

CLIENT. At all times throughout the pendency of the investigation and, if appropriate, litigation, 

CLIENT shall supervise and control all aspects of work done by Attorneys and have the 

authority to override any decision made by Attorneys, including but not limited to whether or not 

to sue, which causes of actions to advance, and which defendants to sue.  

2. This Agreement shall cover the period from MAY, 2018 until the termination of the 

litigation or termination of the legal services rendered hereunder, whichever is sooner.  This 

Agreement may be terminated by the CLIENT upon at least 10-days’ notice, and in the event of 

such termination, neither party shall have any further rights against the other, except that in the 

event of a recovery by the CLIENT against the defendants subsequent to termination, Attorneys 

shall have rights in the nature of quantum meruit to recover fees, costs and expenses reasonably 

allocable to its work prior to termination.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 

reason, Attorneys shall immediately return to the CLIENT all materials and documents of every 

kind and nature, including but not limited to the CLIENT’s documents, data, information and 

computer disks, relating to this Agreement and the above-mentioned matter.  

3. a.    There is no fee for this representation unless a monetary recovery acceptable to the 

CLIENT is obtained by Attorneys in favor of the CLIENT, whether by suit, settlement, or 

otherwise.  Attorneys agree to advance all costs associated with prosecuting the litigation.  

Subject to paragraph 3 (b), below, and in consideration of the legal services to be rendered by 

Attorneys, the CLIENT agrees that the maximum contingent attorneys’ fees for this 

representation shall be as follows:    

i. 25% of pre-complaint recovery;   



{00277833;1} 3  

ii.  25% after filing of complaint;  

iii. 25% of recovery after commencement of trial 

Upon the application of the applicable fee percentage to the gross amount recovered, and that 

dollar amount set aside as attorneys’ fees to Attorneys, the amount remaining shall first be 

reduced by the costs and disbursements that have been advanced by Attorneys, and that amount 

shall be remitted to Attorneys. By way of example only, if the litigation is settled after rulings on 

motions to dismiss (section 3 (a) (ii), above) for the gross amount of $1,000,000.00, and the 

approved costs and disbursements are $100,000.00, then the fee to Attorneys shall be $250,000, 

the costs amount of $100,000 shall be deducted from the balance, and the net recovery to the 

CLIENT shall be $650,000. The costs and disbursements which may be deducted from a 

monetary recovery acceptable to the CLIENT that is obtained by Attorneys include and are not 

limited to the following, without limitation:  court fees, process server fees, transcripts fees, 

expert witness fees, courier service fees, appellate printing fees, necessary travel expenses of 

attorneys to attend depositions, interview witnesses and the like, and other appropriate out-of-

pocket expenses, as determined in the reasonable discretion of the CLIENT.  In the event that 

any settlement, final judgment, or other resolution of the action results in a monetary recovery to 

the CLIENT that is less than the amount of the costs incurred and/or disbursements made by 

Attorneys, the CLIENT shall not be required to pay Attorneys any more than the sum of the full 

monetary recovery.   

  b.  No monies shall be paid to Attorneys for any work performed, costs incurred or 

disbursements made by Attorneys in the event no monetary recovery to the CLIENT has been 

obtained by Attorneys.  In the event of a loss at trial due to an adverse jury verdict or a dismissal 

of the lawsuit by the court, no monies shall be paid to the Attorneys for any work performed, 



{00277833;1} 4  

costs incurred or disbursements made by the Attorneys.  In such an event, neither party shall 

have any further rights against the other.      

4. Attorneys may, at their own expense, and from the contingent fee interest stated 

herein, use or associate other attorneys in the representation of the aforesaid claims of CLIENT.  

CLIENT understands that any one or more of those attorneys with the Attorneys, may work on 

CLIENT’s case, and CLIENT agrees that no particular attorney is undertaking the representation 

of CLIENT by virtue of this Agreement. CLIENT further understands that in such an instance, 

the “attorneys” will share any fees that may be generated in this matter and the CLIENT will be 

advised of the fee division prior to any final distribution, as required.    

5. Attorneys shall report to and keep the CLIENT fully and currently informed as to 

its activities under this Agreement at least monthly and more often if requested by the CLIENT.   

6. It is expressly agreed that Attorneys’ status hereunder is that of an independent 

contractor and the Attorneys shall not be considered an employee of the CLIENT for any 

purpose.  

7. All professional work performed under this Agreement shall be performed by 

Attorneys in accordance with existing professional standards.  Attorneys shall exert their best 

efforts and use their best judgment in review and analysis and preparation of opinions and 

memoranda and representation in such proceedings.  

8. Attorneys shall not have the power to enter into any agreement binding the 

CLIENT or otherwise obligating the CLIENT without the prior written approval of the CLIENT. 

This includes the authority of the CLIENT to accept or reject any final settlement amount after 

receiving advice of Attorneys. 

9. Attorneys have advised CLIENT and CLIENT acknowledges and is aware that 

Attorneys either represent or will represent other parties, including other governmental entities, 



{00277833;1} 5  

in connection with similar or related claims. Attorneys have advised and CLIENT acknowledges 

that potential conflicts of interest could arise. Attorneys shall have an ongoing obligation to 

disclose to CLIENT the existence of any such adverse interests whether existing or potential so 

long as Attorneys are retained on behalf of CLIENT. The determination as to when a conflict 

exists shall ultimately be made by CLIENT after full disclosure is obtained. 

10. The parties to this Agreement hereby certify that, other than the funds provided in 

this Agreement and other valid agreements with the CLIENT, there is no known relationship 

within the third degree of consanguinity, life partner, or business, commercial, economic, or 

financial relationship between the parties, the signatories to this Agreement, and any partners, 

members, directors, or shareholders of any party to this Agreement.  

11. Attorneys shall maintain lawyers’ professional liability insurance with limits of 

not less than $1,000,000 per claim.  It is further expressly agreed that Attorneys shall hold the 

CLIENT harmless from any liability arising from any negligence, act or omission of Attorneys 

with respect to this Agreement or any terms thereof. 

12. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Oregon, without regard to conflicts of law rules.   

13. It is expressly agreed that this Agreement represents the entire agreement of the 

parties, that all previous understandings are merged in this Agreement, and that no modification 

of this Agreement shall be valid unless written and executed by both parties 

14. It is expressly agreed that if any term or provision of this Agreement, or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall be held invalid or unenforceable to any 

extent, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons 

or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be  



{00277833;1} 6  

affected thereby; and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and shall 

be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

15. CLIENT acknowledges that it has carefully read and fully understands all of the 

provisions of this agreement, and that it has the capacity to enter into this agreement.  Each party 

and the person signing on behalf of each party, represents that the person signing this agreement 

has the authority to execute this document and thereby bind the party hereto on whose behalf the 

person is signing. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
latest date written below.  

CURRY COUNTY OREGON  D’AMORE LAW GROUP 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 
By:   By:  

Date:    Date:  
   
 

WHALEY LAW FIRM LAW OFFICE OF THOMAS L. 
YOUNG 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 
By:   By:  

Date:    Date:  
   
 



O r d e r  D ’ A m o r e  C o n t i n g e n t  F e e  A g r e e m e n t  O p i o i d  L i t i g a t i o n  

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

An Order Approving a   ) 
Contingency Fee Agreement ) 
With Tom D’Amore et al to  ) 
Represent Curry County in   )  ORDER NO. _______________ 
Multidistrict Litigation to Recover ) 
Damages Due to Opioid  ) 
 
 WHEREAS, the County wishes to pursue its remedies with respect to wrongful 
conduct involving manufacture and distribution of opioids; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has been presented with options and determines that it is 
in the public interest to participate in multidistrict litigation by retaining Attonrney Tom 
D’Amore et al., on a contingency fee basis at no cost to the County unless there is a 
monetary recovery;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY 
ORDERS that the Contingent Fee Contract with Attorney Tom D‘Amore et al., is 
approved;  
 

County Administrator will oversee and coordinate County participation in the 
lawsuit with assistance of County Counsel.   
 
 DATED this 18th day of Jul, 2018. 
   

BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
       
     _________________________________ 
Approved as to form  Sue Gold, Chair 
 
     _________________________________ 
John Huttl    Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
County counsel 
 

_________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Curry County Public Transit Service District Audit          
Presentation 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  15  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: See note below 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  07/13/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Curry County Public Transit 
Service District 06-30-17Financial Audit Presentation by Pauly, Rogers and Co. 
 
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) 2017 Audited Financial Report 
(2) 2017 Management Letter 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us












































































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Curry County Audit Presentation 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  30  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: See note below 
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  07/13/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Curry County 06-30-17Financial 
Audit Presentation by Pauly, Rogers and Co. 
 
FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) 2017 Audited Financial Report 
(2) 2017 Board Letter 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us






































































































































































































































































































































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Curry County Public Transit Service District (CCPTSD) 
Advisory Committee Appointments 
TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐         
AGENDA DATEa: July 18, 2018 DEPARTMENT:  Finance     TIME NEEDED:  5 min 
RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  APPOINTMENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON:     Clark Schroeder                       TODAY’S DATE: July 13    2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) State Transportation 
Improvement Funds (STIF) will be available in July 2019.  ODOT is in the final stages of 
approving all the rules and criteria for the distribution of these funds. In order for these 
funds to be available for the Curry County transit advisory committee the county needs 
do the following. 
MOTION 1 
Move to dissolve the Current Combined Transit Service and SFT Advisory Committees. 
 
Motion 2   
Move to approve the by-laws of the new Curry County Transit Advisory Committee 
 
Motion 3 
Move to appoint new members to the committee as listed. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Redacted Applications for William Hamilton, Thomas Olsen, Joanne Wasbauer, 
Kathryn Bernhardt, Beth Barker-Hildago, and Kimberly A Jones  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR   BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
Clark Schroeder 
  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Curry County Transit Advisory Committee Bylaws 
 

ARTICLE 1 
Name 

 
The name of this organization shall be the Curry County Transit Advisory Committee.  
 

ARTICLE 2 
Citations 

 
This Committee and these Bylaws are established for the purpose of carrying out the statutory 
requirements as established under ORS 391.800 through 391.830 and ORS 184.758(1)(b) and ORS 
184.761, and the rules establishing the procedures and requirements for administration of the Special 
Transportation Fund and the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund, as set forth under OAR 
Chapter 732, Division 040. 

 
ARTICLE 3 
Definitions 

 
The following definitions shall apply to the terms used in these Bylaws: 
 
“STF” shall mean Special Transportation Fund. 
 
“STIF” shall mean State Transportation Improvement Fund. 
 
“Commissioners” or “The Commissioners” shall mean the Curry County Board of Commissioners.  
 
“Committee” or “The Committee” shall mean the Curry County Transit Advisory Committee.  
 
“Staff” shall refer to individuals working or volunteering for the County and assigned by the 
Commissioners to carry out administrative, fiscal or public information duties pertinent to the tasks 
and duties required to fulfil the STF or STIF planning, administration and distribution of funds. 
 
“Low Income Individuals” or “Low Income Households” shall mean individuals or households with a 
total household income at or below 200% of the current Federal Poverty Level or Federal Poverty 
Guideline for the size of family including children and dependents.  
 
“Areas of High Percentage of Low-Income Households” shall mean geographic areas within Curry 
County that are determined to have a high percentage of low-income households.  
 
“Representative of Low Income Individuals” shall be a person representing the needs of low-income 
transportation system users, and who is familiar through association with groups or individuals with 
the special transportation needs of low-income users. 



 
“Senior” or “elderly” shall mean persons sixty (60) years of age or older. A “Senior Representative” 
shall be someone, who may also be a senior, representing the needs of elderly transportation system 
users, and who is familiar through association with groups or individuals, or facilities serving seniors, 
with the special transportation needs of elderly users. 
 
“Person(s) with Disabilities” shall mean individuals with disabilities that limit or constrain any aspect of 
their daily life, and may include, but is not necessarily limited to, physical, intellectual, cognitive, 
developmental, and/or emotional disabilities.  
 
“Representative of Persons with Disabilities” shall be someone representing the needs of disabled 
transportation system users, who may also be a person with disabilities, and who, through association 
with groups or individuals, or facilities serving persons with disabilities, is familiar with the special 
transportation needs of disabled users. 
 
“Public Transportation Service Provider Representative” shall mean a representative of a for-profit or 
non-profit transportation service engaged in providing public transportation services within the 
County, regardless of whether or not this entity receives public transportation funding. 
 
“Local Government Representative” shall mean an employee of a County, municipal, or special district 
governmental organization formed and organized under the Oregon Revised Statutes and operating 
within the jurisdictional boundaries of Curry County.  
 
“Employer Representative” shall mean any employee, supervisor, manager, or owner of a business 
enterprise legally operating within the boundaries of Curry County. 
 
“Social and Human Service Provider Representative” shall mean a representative of a social services, 
human services, or health services agency operating within Curry County. Said agency may be a public 
agency, a non-profit agency, or a not-for-profit institution such as a health center.  
 
“Transit Dependent User” shall mean an individual who is dependent on public transportation for 
mobility due to economic reasons or due to other special transportation needs. 
 
“Social Equity Advocates” shall be individuals representing either organizations or standing committees 
associated with local governments within Curry County which advocate for equity for groups of 
persons who may be disadvantaged due to but not limited to ethnicity; income or other economic 
circumstances; limited English proficiency; homelessness; citizenship status; gender identity; sexual 
orientation; or which exist to advise local government elected officials on matters related to equity. 
 
“Environmental Advocates” shall be individuals representing either organizations or standing 
committees associated with local governments within Curry County which advocate for any of a wide 
range of environmental issues, goals, projects, or interests, or which exist to advise local government 
elected officials on matters related to the environment or to environmental features of public 
property. 



 
“Bicycle and Pedestrian Advocates” shall be individuals representing either organizations or standing 
committees associated with local governments within Curry County which advocate for and promote 
bicycle and pedestrian-related issues, goals, projects, or interests, or which exist to advise local 
government elected officials on matters related to bicycle and/or pedestrian traffic safety and 
enforcement, pathways and travel lanes, project planning and development, and promote public 
events.  
 
“Persons with Limited English Proficiency” shall be persons as defined in Curry County’s Limited English 
Proficiency Plan adopted by the Board of Commissioners, who do not speak English as their original 
language and who may have limited proficiency in either speaking or understanding written or spoken 
English, or both.  
 
“Representative of Persons with Limited English Proficiency” shall be someone representing the needs 
of transportation system users with limited English proficiency, and who is familiar through association 
with neighborhood groups, local school groups, social service or non-profit agencies, with the 
transportation needs of limited English proficiency users. 
 
“Representative of Educational Institutions” shall mean a person who is employed by or serves on the 
Board of Directors of a K-12 public school, chartered or state-licensed private K-12 school, community 
college, university, private college, or trade school operating within the jurisdictional boundaries of 
Curry County.  
 
“Major Destination” shall mean a well-known and commonly recognized destination within Curry 
County, which may be at either one physical location or a group of destination locations within an 
industry.  
 
“Representative of Major Destinations” may be an employee, manager or owner of a destination or 
representing a destination industry group, or a member of an organization that promotes tourism 
within Curry County generally.  
 
“Fiscal year” shall mean the period of July 1st to June 30th. 
 
“Biennial” shall mean a two year period from July 1 of odd numbered years to June 30th of the next odd 
numbered year. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
Function 

Section 1. Purpose: The Committee shall advise and support the Commissioners in tasks and duties 
supporting local and regional transportation services funded through the Special Transportation Fund 
(STF) or State Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) and allocated to Curry County, for distribution 
to Public Transportation Service Providers within and adjacent to Curry County.  
 
Section 2. Major Tasks: The Committee shall have four major tasks. These are:  



(a) Reviewing and advising Commissioners and county staff on the development of the local STIF Plan, 
consistent with the guidelines promulgated by State administering agencies; advising Commissioners 
and county staff in carrying out the purposes of STF and other federal or state funding plans. 
 
(b) Reviewing all projects proposed for inclusion within the STIF Plan, and prioritizing the approved 
projects, including the funding level for each project to be included within the STIF Plan; reviewing 
Service Provider proposals for projects funded in whole or in part by the STIF Formula Fund, the STIF 
Discretionary Fund, the Intercommunity Discretionary Fund and the Special Transportation Fund. 

(c) Developing a process for monitoring and evaluating projects to ensure that Public Transportation 
Providers that have received funds are applying the funds in accordance with and for the purposes 
described within their project proposal; 

(d) As and if requested, and in the manner directed by the Commissioners, reviewing and advising 
county staff on the methodology for distribution of STF or STIF Formula Program monies allocated to 
Curry County; 

Section 3. STIF Plan Duties: The Committee shall perform the tasks consistent with the administrative 
requirements set forth under OAR Chapter 732, as defined by Curry County; 

(a) Hold public meetings to assist and advise county staff with the development of the County’s local 
STIF Plan, including components of the Plan developed by or for other Public Transportation Service 
Providers within the County; 

(b) Pursuant to OAR 732-040-0035(2)(a), it shall be the responsibility of the Advisory Committee to 
gather data and to seek public input, and to make a determination as to the areas of Curry County in 
which there exist high percentages of low-income households (i.e.: income at or below 200% of the 
current Federal Poverty Level), and to publish said determination in its Committee minutes and printed 
public materials.  
 
(c) Review every project proposed for inclusion in the County STIF Plan and make a determination 
whether to recommend inclusion or rejection of the project for the STIF Plan; 

(d) Advise and assist county staff by recommending projects to be included in the STIF Plan; the priority 
of each project in the Plan; and the level of project funding to be included for each project, consistent 
with the County’s allocation process for the distribution of Formula Fund moneys; 

(e) Consider the criteria established under OAR Chapter 732 when identifying Projects for inclusion in 
the STIF Plan, including but not limited to: expanded service and frequency in areas with a high 
percentage of low income households, persons with disabilities and/or elderly persons; improved 
service connections between communities; reduced fragmentation of service and closure of service 
gaps; maintenance of existing services; and other factors such as geographic equity;  

(f) Advise Commissioners and county staff regarding the opportunities to coordinate STIF funded 
projects in the Plan with other local or regional transportation programs and services; 

(g) Present and recommend to the Board of Commissioners for approval a STIF Plan that includes the 
prioritization of projects proposed for funding within the Plan;  



(h) Develop processes for review and monitoring of ongoing funded projects and local Plans, which 
may include reporting and site visits to local public transportation providers receiving STIF project 
funding;  

(i) If appropriate, propose changes to policies or practices to ensure that the Public Transportation 
Service Provider has applied the monies received in accordance with and for the purposes described in 
the STIF Plan or project proposal, and that the project does not unduly fragment the provision of public 
transportation services. 

Section 3. Evaluation Process-STIF Plan 
The Committee is responsible for evaluating proposed projects to be funded by STIF. 
The Committee shall hold public meetings, as applicable, to review every project proposed for 
inclusion in the Curry County’s STIF Plan. 
 
The Committee is responsible for submitting the Curry County STIF Plan to ODOT at intervals to be 
decided by the Committee, but no less than once per biennium. 
 
The Committee shall consider the following criteria when reviewing and prioritizing projects: 

Whether the project would: 
• Increase the frequency of bus service to communities with a high percentage of low income 

households, persons with disabilities and/or elderly persons; 
• Expand bus routes and bus service to communities with a high percentage of low income 

households, persons with disabilities and/or elderly persons; 
• Reduce fares for public transportation in communities with a high percentage of low income 

households, persons with disabilities and/or elderly persons; 
• Improve the frequency and reliability of service connections between communities inside and 

outside transit service provider’s service area; 
• Increase the coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers to reduce 

fragmentation in the provision of public transportation service; 
• Maintain an existing productive service; 
• Meet public transportation needs and are a responsible use of public funds; and 
• Meet other conditions to be determined by Curry County Board of Commissioners or the 

Committee, such as geographic equity. 
 

The Committee will recommend approval or rejection of proposed projects and recommend 
prioritization of approved projects within the service area of the transit service provider.  
 
The Committee and Curry County Board of Commissioners should work together to ensure that the 
STIF Plans reflect a coordinated regional approach to Public Transportation Service that considers the 
public transportation needs of people residing and traveling into and out of the geographic territory of 
the transit service provider as well as larger regional population centers and to ensure that interested 
parties have the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed STIF plan. 
 
Curry County Board of Commissioners is responsible for adopting all STIF plans and has final approval 
over other project recommendations. 



 
Section 4. Other Responsibilities 
The Committee shall: 

• Advise and make recommendations on STF Provider programs, including distribution of funds; 
• Advise and make recommendations on matters that would improve STF or STIF programs or 

facilitate the needs of users of the programs;  
• Advise and assist Curry County on planning, policy, and other matters related to the provision 

of transit services by transit service provider; 
• Advise and assist Curry County, CCPTSD and the transit service provider on matters that pertain 

to the transportation needs of the community with an additional focus on persons who are 
elderly, persons with disabilities and/or low-income individuals; 

• Encourage and facilitate the coordination of transit service provider’s services with other local 
or regional transportation programs and services to improve transportation service delivery and 
reduce gaps in service within the service area and region; 

• Help identify unmet mobility needs of area residents and facilitate the development of transit 
services that are responsive to those needs; 

• Advocate for high quality transit services which are safe, efficient, effective, reliable, and 
responsive to the mobility needs of area residents; 

• Help facilitate public awareness of available public transit services within the area. 
 
The Committee may also propose any changes to the policies or practices of Curry County that the 
Committee considers necessary to ensure that: 

• The transit service provider has applied STF and STIF funds received in accordance with and for 
the purposes described in the Project proposal; and 

• A project proposal submitted by transit service provider does not fragment the provision of 
public transportation services.  

 
ARTICLE 5 

Membership 
Section 1. Number, Qualifications, and Selection of Members: The Committee shall consist of no less 
than five (5), and no more than nine (9) members, appointed directly by the Commissioners, as follows: 

a) To be qualified to serve on the Committee, an individual must: 

1. Reside or work in Curry County and;  
2. Be knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of residents or employees located 

within or traveling to and from the County. 

c) At least one member from each of the following, who shall be a person: 

1. With low-income, or a person from a low-income household, as defined in Article 3, who uses 
transportation services in the County, or a representative of low-income persons or households 
who use transportation services in the County; and 

2. Who is a senior or elderly individual or an individual with a disability, as defined in Article 3, and 
uses transportation services in the County, or a representative of seniors or people with 



disabilities who use transportation in the County; and 

3. A public transportation service provider representative, as defined in Article 3. 
 

d) Up to six (6) additional members may be representatives from any of the following groups, as 
defined in Article 3: 

1. local governments, including land use planners 
2. non-profit public transportation service providers, 
3. neighboring public transportation service providers, 
4. employers, 
5. social and human service providers, 
6. transit dependent users, 
7. social equity advocates, 
8. environmental advocates, 
9. bicycle and pedestrian advocates, 
10. people with limited-English proficiency, 
11. educational institutions, 
12. major destinations. 

e) The Commissioners will seek to appoint Committee members who represent the diverse interests, 
perspectives, geography, and the demographics of the County. Consideration may also be given to 
individuals within these categories who are users of public transportation services provided within the 
County.  

Section 2. Ex Officio Members: The Committee may additionally consist of any the following ex officio 
members, appointed by the Board of Commissioners as follows: 

One (1) County representative; 
Any additional representatives that the Board of Commissioners deems appropriate. 
 

Section 3. Terms of Office: Terms shall be three (3) years. Any member may serve three (3) successive 
terms if reappointed by the Board of Commissioners. Terms begin on July 1 and end on June 30. Terms 
shall be staggered, with at least three members' terms expiring each year. Initial appointments shall be 
staggered to provide that approximately one-half of the members serve for two-year terms, and one-
half for three-year terms. Thereafter, all appointments shall be for three-year terms.  
 
Section 4. Member Responsibilities: All Committee members shall regularly attend meetings of the 
Committee and any meetings of the subcommittees to which they are appointed, and shall fulfill other 
duties as appointed by the Chairman. 
 
Section 5. Termination of Membership:  

The Board of Commissioners may remove Committee members as follows:  
a) Failure to attend three or more consecutive regular Committee meetings or no longer meets 



the residency requirement; 

b) For cause following public hearing, for reasons including, but not limited to commission of a 
felony, corruption, intentional violation of open meetings law, failure to declare conflict of 
interest, or incompetence;  

c) Without cause pursuant to Curry County Code. 

Section 6. Vacancies:  
Any member may resign from the Committee by giving written notice to the Chairperson. The 
resignation will be effective immediately upon receipt of such notice. 
 
Vacancies that occur prior to the end of a term in office shall be filled by a majority vote of the 
members present at a duly called Committee meeting. Such appointees shall serve for the duration of 
the unexpired term or until the next regular appointment of committee members by the Board, 
whichever comes first. 
 
If a vacancy leaves fewer than five members, it must be filled. If a vacancy leaves more than five 
members, it may be filled at the discretion of the Committee. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
Officers 

The following officers shall be elected from the Committee membership during the first meeting of 
each fiscal year: 

Chair: The Chair shall have the responsibility of conducting all meetings and hearings in 
an orderly manner; appointing sub-committees, as necessary and appropriate; 
and serving as an ex officio member of all sub-committees.  

Vice Chair: The Vice Chair shall be responsible for conducting the meetings and hearings in 
the absence of the Chair, and serving as ex-officio member of all sub committees 
in the absence of the Chair. 

Secretary:  The secretary shall take and maintain copies of the minutes of all Committee 
meetings and notify members of upcoming meetings.  

 
ARTICLE 7 

Subcommittees 
Section 1. Creation of Subcommittees: The Committee shall have the power to create subcommittees 
with such responsibilities as the Committee directs. 
 
Section 2. Naming of Subcommittees: The Chair shall appoint and charge each subcommittee with its 
responsibilities, shall appoint the members of the subcommittee, and shall appoint the chair of the 
subcommittee in the event the subcommittee consists of more than one person. The subcommittee 
chair shall be responsible for scheduling meetings, assigning specific tasks within the mandate of the 
subcommittee, and reporting to the Committee concerning the work of the subcommittee. 
 

ARTICLE 8 



Advisors 
The Committee and the subcommittees may call on lay citizens and professionals as advisors without 
voting rights to provide technical assistance, expert guidance and advice, data support and analysis, 
provide information for and testify in deliberations, and attend meetings to the extent deemed 
appropriate and approved by the Committee and the Chair.  
 
Calling of advisors by the Committee will be coordinated by the Chair or subcommittee chairs through 
County staff assigned to the Committee.  
 

ARTICLE 9 
Meetings 

Section 1. Regular Meetings: Meetings shall be held a minimum of two times per year, as required by 
statute, but may be held more frequently to carry out the purposes of the Committee. These meetings 
shall be held in publically accessible facilities, and shall take place during transit operating hours, to 
facilitate attendance of interested individuals.  
 
Section 2. Special Meetings: Special meetings may be called by the Chair or by the Board of 
Commissioners by giving the members and the press written or verbal notice at least 24 hours before 
the meeting. 
 
Section 3. Quorum: A simple majority of the appointed, and filled, voting membership shall constitute 
a quorum. All business conducted with a majority vote of the quorum shall stand as the official action 
of the Committee.  
 
Section 4. Voting: Each Committee member, except ex officio members, shall have one vote. The Chair 
may not initiate a motion, but may second, and shall vote on each issue after the question is called. 
However, in the event the Chair’s vote shall create a tie, the Chair shall refrain from voting. Proxy 
voting is not permitted. A Committee member shall not vote on any funding decision in which they are 
an applicant for funds.  
 
Section 5. Staff: Administrative staff to the Committee shall be determined by the Commissioners. 
 
Section 6. Agenda: The Chair shall prepare the agenda of items requiring Committee action, and shall 
add items of business as may be requested by individual Committee members and/or the Board of 
Commissioners. Agendas of all meetings shall be posted in advance as required under existing County 
policy and filed with the Commissioners.  
 
Section 7. Notice: All members shall be given written notice of time, date, location, and purpose of the 
meetings at least three (3) days before a regular Committee meeting, and written or verbal notice one 
(1) day before a special meeting. In the event a member is provided with less than three (3) days 
written notice of a regular meeting, or less than one (1) day actual notice of a special meeting, and 
objects to the proceedings based on a lack of adequate notice, all business conducted at that meeting 
shall be reconsidered at the next regular meeting or at a special meeting called with adequate notice. 
 



Section 8. Minutes: Minutes recording all motions and subsequent action including the number of yes 
or no votes on each issue shall be taken. In addition, all conflicts of interest shall be noted. Minutes of 
all meetings shall be posted following all meetings as required under existing County policy and filed 
with the Commissioners.  
 

ARTICLE 10 
Public Records & Meeting Law and Public Engagement 

Section 1. Public Records and Meeting Law: The Committee is a public body for the purposes of ORS 
Chapter 192, and is subject to the statutory procedures related to Oregon public records and meetings. 
Pursuant to OAR 732-040-0035(2)(b), written copies of Committee agendas, minutes, and Bylaws shall 
be made available to the public for a period of no less than six (6) years. 

Section 1. Public Engagement: Pursuant to OAR 735-040-0035, the Committee shall strive to seek 
public engagement in all its deliberative processes, with particular regard to the selection of projects 
for inclusion and funding in the County STIF Plan. The Committee will work with county staff resources 
such as the County Public Information Officer to publicize key meetings and hold public forums as 
needed to ensure maximum public access to information and public participation in priority-setting 
exercises. 
 

ARTICLE 11 
Parliamentary Procedure 

The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall guide the Committee where not inconsistent with 
these Bylaws or any special rules of order the Committee shall adopt. 
 

ARTICLE 12 
Conflict of Interest 

A potential or actual conflict of interest shall be declared by any member who has or may have a 
conflict of interest as defined by Oregon law (ORS 244.020), prior to taking any action on the matter 
causing the conflict. No member shall vote upon any motion that requires declaration of an actual 
conflict of interest.  
 

ARTICLE 13 
Bylaws and Amendments 

Section 1. Bylaws: The Committee shall maintain written Bylaws pursuant to OAR 732-040-0035 that 
include, but are not limited to, name and purpose, committee membership criteria, appointment 
process, terms of office for the committee members, general procedures of the committee, member 
duties, meeting schedule, public noticing requirements and engagement processes, and the STIF Plan 
development process and general decision-making criteria.  
 
Section 2. Review of Bylaws: The Committee shall periodically review its Bylaws and update them as 
required, but no less frequently than every three (3) years. Committee Bylaws will be reviewed by the 
County Counsel and presented to the Commissioners for adoption. The Commissioners may also elect 
to review Committee Bylaws at any time.  
 



Section 3. Amendments: Committee Bylaws may be amended by the Board of Commissioners upon its 
own motion. Prior to an amendment, the Board of Commissioners may request a recommendation 
from the Committee which may recommend changes at any regular meeting of the Committee by a 
two-thirds vote of the appointed and filled membership, provided that the recommended amendment 
has been submitted in writing to the Committee members no later than three days before the regular 
meeting. 

Adopted this ___ day of _________, 2018.  

Signed this ___ day of _________, 2018.  

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

By: 

_____________________________________________
Sue Gold, Chair 

____________________________________________
Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair

____________________________________________
Court Boice, Commissioner 



PLEASE INDICATE WHICH OF THESE GROUPS YOU REPRESENT. 
Please explain how you represent the group 

o Individual age 65 or older
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Individual with disabilities
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Low-income individual
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Transit user or user who depends on transit for accomplishing daily activities
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Individual with limited English proficiency
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Public Transportation Service Provider, for profit or non profit
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Local government, including land use planner
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Local employer
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Social and human service provider
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Social equity advocate
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Environmental advocate
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Bicycle and pedestrian advocate
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Educational institution
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

o Major destinations for users of public transit
___________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________



March 27, 2018 Page 1 of 33 

Oregon Department of Transportation 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund Rules 

As filed with the Secretary of State for Public Comment in April 2018 

DRAFT, March 27, 2018 

A refined version of these draft rules is under development for a decision by the Oregon 

Transportation Commission at their June 2018 meeting. 

Chapter 732, Division 040  

Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund General Information 

732‐040‐0000 

Purpose of Rule 

The rules in Chapter 732, Divisions 040, 042, and 044 establish the procedures and requirements for the 

administration of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) to improve public 

transportation service in Oregon.  

Stat. Auth.:  ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.761 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.751, ORS 184.758, ORS 184.761, ORS 184.766, Or Laws 2017, ch 750, § 

122q, § 122r  

732‐040‐0005 

Definitions 

The following definitions apply to rules in Chapter 732, Divisions 040, 042, and 044: 

(1) “Advisory Committee” means either a committee formed by a Qualified Entity to assist the Qualified

Entity in carrying out the purposes of the STIF Formula Fund and the Advisory Committee

requirements specified in ORS 184.761(1) or a joint committee formed by two or more Qualified

Entities for the same purposes, pursuant to ORS 184.761(5).

(2) “Agency” means Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”).

(3) “Americans with Disabilities Act” (“ADA”) means section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and

the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended by the ADA Amendments Act of 2008.

(4) “Area Commission on Transportation” (“ACT”) means an advisory body chartered under the

authority of the Commission, and subject to the  Commission’s oversight and final decision‐making

authority.

(5) “Biennium” (plural, “Biennia”) means a two‐year period which runs from July 1 of an odd‐numbered

year to June 30 of the next odd‐numbered year.

(6) “Calendar Year” means the year which begins on January 1 and ends on December 31.



March 27, 2018 Page 2 of 33 

(7) “Capital Asset” means real property or tangible items purchased or leased with STIF moneys,

including without limitation vehicles and structures, with a purchase price of $5,000 or more and a

useful life of at least one year.

(8) “Commission” means the Oregon Transportation Commission (“OTC”) established under ORS

184.612.

(9) “Coordinate” (“Coordination”) means meet and develop sub‐allocation methods, plans, programs,

and schedules with other Public Transportation Service Providers and non‐profit public

transportation service providers with the intent of developing efficient and seamless public

transportation services and reducing gaps in service.

(10) “Discretionary Fund” means up to five percent of STIF funds to be disbursed to Public Transportation 

Service Providers, which includes Qualified Entities, through a competitive grant funding process, 

pursuant to ORS 184.758(1)(b). 

(11) “Fiscal Year” means the Agency’s fiscal year which begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. 

(12) “Governing Body” means the decision‐making body or board of a Qualified Entity.  

(13) “Indian Tribe” means a federally recognized Indian Tribe in Oregon that has members residing on a 

reservation or in tribal trust lands in Oregon. 

(14) “Intercommunity Discretionary Fund” means up to four percent of STIF funds to be disbursed to 

Public Transportation Providers through a competitive grant funding process, pursuant to ORS 

184.758(1)(c). 

(15) “Intergovernmental Entity” means entities organized under ORS 190.010. 

(16) “Low‐Income Household” means a household the total income of which does not exceed 200% of

the poverty guidelines updated periodically in the Federal Register by the U.S. Department of Health

and Human Services under the authority of 42 U.S.C. 9902(2) for the  48 Contiguous States and the

District of Columbia.

(17) “Local Plan” means a local or regional public transportation plan(s), which may include adopted 

policy(ies) that is developed and approved by the Governing Body of a Qualified Entity, Public 

Transportation Service Provider, or Metropolitan Planning Organization and which includes, at a 

minimum: 

(a) A planning horizon of at least four years;

(b) An existing and future conditions analysis that includes:

(A) Current and forecast population and demographics, including locations of people who are

often transit dependent, including low‐income households, individuals of age 65 or older, youth,

and individuals who are racially and ethnically diverse;

(B) Locations of existing housing, employment centers, medical and social and human services

centers, major destinations, and other locations with needs for public transportation services

and programs;

(C) Inventories of current Public Transportation Services located within, adjacent to, or with the

reasonable potential to connect to the local or regional public transportation services, as

applicable;

(c) Prioritized lists of public transportation improvements and capital projects; and



March 27, 2018 Page 3 of 33 

(d) Identified opportunities to Coordinate public transportation services within and outside the

county, district, or tribal area and with other agencies and areas to improve efficiency and

effectiveness of service and reduce gaps in service.

(e) Local Plans include, but are not limited to: Coordinated Public Transit Human Services

Transportation Plans, Transportation System Plans, Transit Development Plans, and Transit Master

Plans.

(18) “Mass Transit District” means a district organized under ORS 267.010 to 267.390. 

(19) “Practicable” means Public Transportation Services within the Qualified Entity’s area of 

responsibility that can feasibly and efficiently be used by students in grades 9 through 12 in order to 

commute to or from school.  

(20) “Project” means a public transportation improvement activity or group of activities eligible for STIF 

moneys and a plan or proposal for which is included in a STIF Plan or in a grant application to a 

Qualified Entity or the Agency.  Examples of project types include, but are not limited to:  discrete 

activities, such as purchasing transit vehicles, planning, or operations; and groups of activities for a 

particular geographic area or new service, such as a new route that includes purchase of a transit 

vehicle, and maintenance and operations on the new route.  

(21) “Public Corporation” means an independent legal entity that was formed by legislative action, 

serves a public purpose, and is under exclusive public management or control. 

(22) “Public Transportation Advisory Committee” (“PTAC”) means the ODOT Public Transportation 

Advisory Committee established by the Commission in 2000. 

(23) “Public Transportation Service Provider” means a Qualified Entity or a city, county, Special District, 

Intergovernmental Entity or any other political subdivision or municipal or Public Corporation that 

provides Public Transportation Services.  

(24) “Public Transportation Services” means any form of passenger transportation by car, bus, or other 

conveyance, either publicly or privately owned, which provides service to the general public (not 

including charter, sightseeing, or exclusive school bus service) on a regular and continuing basis. 

Such transportation may be for purposes such as health care, shopping, education, employment, 

public services, personal business, or recreation. 

(25) “Qualified Entity” means, a county in which no part of a Mass Transit District or Transportation 

District exists, a Mass Transit District, a Transportation District or an Indian Tribe.  

(26) “Recipient” means a Qualified Entity or Public Transportation Service Provider that has a STIF Plan 

approved by the Commission or enters into an agreement directly with the Agency to receive STIF 

funds. 

(27) “Satisfactory Continuing Control” means the legal assurance that a Capital Asset will remain 

available to be used for its originally authorized purpose throughout its useful life or until 

disposition. 

(28) “Special District” means a service district organized under ORS 451.010(1)(h).  

(29) “STIF Formula Fund” means up to 90 percent of the Statewide Transportation Improvement funds to 

be disbursed to Qualified Entities conditioned upon the Commission’s approval of a STIF Plan, 

pursuant to ORS 184.758(1)(a). 

(30) “STIF” or “Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund” means the fund established under ORS 

184.751. 



March 27, 2018 Page 4 of 33 

(31) “STIF Plan” means a public transportation improvement plan that is approved by a Governing Body 

and submitted to the Agency for review and approval by the Commission in order for the Qualified 

Entity to receive a share of the STIF Formula Fund.  

(32) “Statewide Transit Network” means the collection of all transit service that operates in Oregon. 

(33) “Sub‐Recipient” means any entity that has entered into an agreement with a Recipient in order to 

complete one or more tasks specified in the agreement between the Agency and the Recipient. 

(34) “These Rules” means OAR Chapter 732 Divisions 040, 042, and 044. 

(35) “Transportation District” means a district organized under ORS 267.510 to 267.650.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3), ORS 184.758(6), ORS 184.761 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.751, ORS 184.752, ORS 184.758, ORS 184.761, ORS 184.766 

732‐040‐0010 

Purpose and Use of STIF 

(1) Moneys in the STIF are continuously appropriated to the Agency to finance investments and

improvements in public transportation services, except that the moneys may not be used for light rail

capital expenses, but may be used for light rail operations expenses.

(2) STIF moneys may be used for public transportation purposes that support the effective planning,

deployment, operation, and administration STIF‐funded public transportation programs, including, but

not limited to:

(a) Creation of new systems and services with origins, destinations or stops in Oregon;

(b) Maintenance or continuation of systems and services; and

(c) Planning for and development of a Local Plan or future STIF Plan to improve Public

Transportation Service.

(3) STIF moneys may be used as the local match for state and federal funds which also provide Public

Transportation Service.

(4) The Agency shall conduct activities necessary to manage the STIF funds and grants, including but not

limited to: development of policy; distribution of funds; developing and implementing application and

review processes and agreement and protest procedures; conducting program oversight, statewide

planning, research, training, and technical assistance; and reporting to the legislature.

(5) On or before February 1, 2020, the Commission shall submit a report in the manner provided by ORS

192.245 to the Joint Committee on Transportation established under ORS 171.585(1) on the

implementation and outcomes of the STIF.  The Agency shall prepare reports for the purposes of:

(a) Ensuring that STIF moneys are being used for the purpose of funding and improving Public

Transportation Services in Oregon consistent with law, these rules, and the terms of

agreements;

(b) Measuring the outcomes of the STIF; and

(c) Reporting to the Oregon State Legislature.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3), ORS 184.761 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.751, ORS 184.758, ORS 184.761, ORS 184.766 



March 27, 2018 Page 5 of 33 

732‐040‐0015 

Audit and Compliance Review Requirements 

(1) Recipients shall conduct an annual financial audit of the STIF moneys received.

(2) All financial audit reports shall be submitted to the Agency no later than 30 days after the receipt of

the auditor’s final report(s).

(3) Recipients shall be subject to periodic on‐site compliance reviews by the Agency.  The purpose of the

compliance site review is to ensure that Recipients have appropriate, adequate internal controls and

management procedures to meet the terms and conditions of agreements governing the disbursement

of STIF moneys.  Compliance reviews may cover the following topics, as applicable: program

management; financial management; operations management, procurement, use and maintenance of

equipment; records retention; compliance with state and federal civil rights laws; and compliance with

the ADA.

(4) Recipients shall permit the Agency, the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon, or their authorized

representatives, upon reasonable notice, access to all data and records relating to STIF moneys received

or disbursed and to inspect the STIF Plans and Projects financed with STIF moneys including, but not

limited to, the financial records, physical premises and Capital Assets used to deliver public

transportation services.

(5) Recipients shall ensure that their agreements or contracts with Sub‐Recipients or vendors include

provisions which permit the Agency, the Secretary of State of Oregon, or their authorized

representative, access to data and records held by the Sub‐Recipient or vendor as described in section

(4) of this rule.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758 

732‐040‐0020 

Accounting Requirements 

(1) The Agency shall account separately for moneys in the STIF Formula Fund, Discretionary Fund, and

Intercommunity Discretionary Fund.

(2) Recipients shall manage STIF moneys in separate governmental accounts for each of the applicable

STIF funds: STIF Formula Fund, STIF Discretionary Fund, and STIF Intercommunity Discretionary Fund.

Any interest accrued must be added to the moneys and must be reported to the Agency at the end of

the Fiscal Year in which it was earned.

(3) Recipients shall document the expenditure of all STIF funds disbursed by the Agency. Recipients shall

create and maintain all expenditure records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and in sufficient detail to permit the Agency to verify how the STIF funds were expended.

(4) Record Retention:

(a) Recipients shall maintain all financial records for at least six years after the Agency’s final

disbursement under the STIF Plan or grant agreement; and

(b) Recipients shall maintain all records relating to Capital Assets for three years after

disposition.



March 27, 2018 Page 6 of 33 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758 

732‐040‐0025 

Qualified Entity Reporting Requirements 

In addition to any other reporting required by these rules, Qualified Entities that receive STIF moneys 

shall submit the following documentation to the Agency:  

(1) A report on any actions taken by any Public Transportation Service Provider located within the area

of the Qualified Entity to mitigate the impact of the STIF tax on passengers who reside in low‐income

communities.  The report must explain how it defines and identifies passengers in low‐income

communities.  This report must be submitted no later than 60 days after the end of each Fiscal Year in

which the Qualified Entity receives STIF moneys.

(2) The Qualified Entity’s adopted annual budget for the upcoming Fiscal Year must be submitted no

later than 30 days after adoption.

(3) The results of any relevant financial audits of the Qualified Entity or any Public Transportation Service

Provider located within the area of the Qualified Entity, as required by a local, state or federal oversight

agency for the purposes of statewide reporting including, but not limited to:

(a) The state financial report required under ORS 291.040;

(b) The results of any comprehensive review completed by the Federal Transit Administration or

the Agency; and

(c) Any information submitted by the Qualified Entity as part of the requirements of a statewide

audit in accordance with the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 (31 U.S.C. 7501 to 7507), as

amended by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104‐156).

(4) Results of audits described in section (3) of this rule must be submitted to the Agency no later than

30 days after receipt of the final results.  A copy of information submitted under section (3)(c) of this

rule must be sent to the Agency no later than 30 days after submittal to the requesting agency.

(5) The Agency may withhold future distributions of STIF moneys from a Qualified Entity which fails to

submit an annual report required under rule.

(6) A Qualified Entity may appeal the Agency’s decision to withhold STIF Formula Fund moneys as

described in OAR 732‐040‐0050.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.766 

732‐040‐0030 

Advisory Committees  

(1) The Governing Body of each Qualified Entity shall appoint an Advisory Committee for the purpose of

advising and assisting the Qualified Entity in carrying out the purposes of the STIF and prioritizing

Projects to be funded by STIF moneys received by the Qualified Entity.



March 27, 2018 Page 7 of 33 

(2) Two or more Governing Bodies may appoint a joint Advisory Committee for the purpose of advising

and assisting their respective Qualified Entities in carrying out the purposes of the STIF for the Qualified

Entities’ areas of responsibility.

(a) When the Governing Boards of two or more Qualified Entities appoint a joint Advisory

Committee, they shall designate their respective roles and responsibilities pertaining to the

management of the joint Advisory Committee in a written agreement pursuant to ORS chapter

190. At a minimum, the written agreement must specifically identify how the Qualified Entities’

obligations under section (4) of this rule will be allocated between or among the participating

Qualified Entities and must describe the selection and appointment processes for joint Advisory

Committee members, consistent with OAR 732‐040‐0035.

(b) The Qualified Entities shall send a copy of the executed agreement to the Agency within 30

days of execution.

(c) The joint Advisory Committee agreement may be included as part of the agreement required

to fulfill the requirements of OAR 732‐040‐0040, if applicable; however, Qualified Entities may

form a joint Advisory Committee without agreeing to jointly manage STIF moneys.

(d) Each Qualified Entity that is party to a joint Advisory Committee agreement remains

independently responsible to submit its own STIF Plan pursuant to OAR 732‐042‐0015 and these

rules.

(3) An Advisory Committee may also advise the Qualified Entity regarding the opportunities to

Coordinate STIF funded Projects with other local or regional transportation programs and services to

improve transportation service delivery and reduce gaps in service.

(4) The Qualified Entity shall ensure that:

(a) The Advisory Committee is guided by written bylaws that include, at a minimum: the

Committee’s name and purpose; the number of Committee members; Committee membership

criteria; the appointment process; the terms of office for the committee members; the

Committee’s meeting schedule; and Committee procedures and member duties, including

procedures to provide public notice of meetings, to foster public engagement, and to comply

with Oregon public meeting and public records laws; and  the Committee’s process to review

Public Transportation Service Provider proposals for Projects funded in whole or part by the STIF

Formula Fund, the STIF Discretionary Fund and the Intercommunity Discretionary Fund, and the

decision‐making criteria identified in these rules.  The bylaws must include a definition of “high

percentage of Low‐Income Households” for the Committee’s use in evaluating proposed

Projects.  The Qualified Entity shall prepare the written bylaws described in this section and set

the terms of office for the Advisory Committee members.  The Qualified Entity may seek input

on the bylaws from the Advisory Committee.

(b) Copies of Advisory Committee bylaws, meeting minutes and meeting notices are published

by the Qualified Entity and made available for public review in a reasonable and timely manner

and are maintained for six years.

(c) The Agency is notified of changes in the Advisory Committee membership when the Qualified

Entity submits its STIF Plan or grant application.



March 27, 2018 Page 8 of 33 

(5) A Qualified Entity may use another standing advisory committee or combine committees to meet the

requirements of these rules as long as that committee also meets all of the committee requirements

contained herein.

(6) The Qualified Entity shall appoint an Advisory Committee composed of members that represent

diverse interests, perspectives, geography, and the population demographics of the area, as described in

OAR 732‐040‐0035.

(7) In addition to any other duties, the Advisory Committee may also propose any changes to the

policies or practices of the Governing Body of the Qualified Entity that the Advisory Committee

considers necessary to ensure that:

(a) A Public Transportation Service Provider that has received STIF funds has applied the moneys

received in accordance with and for the purposes described in the Project proposal; and

(b) A Project proposal submitted by a Public Transportation Service Provider does not fragment

the provision of public transportation services.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(e), ORS 184.761(4), ORS 184.761(5) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(4), ORS 184.761 

732‐040‐0035 

Advisory Committee Composition 

(1) If the Qualified Entity is an Indian Tribe, then the Advisory Committee must be composed of at least

three members, each of whom must be able to represent the public transportation needs of individuals

served by the Indian Tribe.  The Governing Body may authorize a larger Advisory Committee.

(2) If the Qualified Entity is a Transportation District or county, then the Advisory Committee must be

composed of at least five members.  The Governing Body may authorize a larger Advisory Committee.

(3) If the Qualified Entity is a Mass Transit District, then the Advisory Committee must be composed of

at least seven members. The Governing Body may authorize a larger Advisory Committee.

(4) If the Advisory Committee is a joint Advisory Committee formed by two or more Qualified Entities,

then the minimum number of Advisory Committee members will be determined based on the types of

Qualified Entities participating in the joint Advisory Committee.  The minimum number of members of

the joint Advisory Committee must be equal to the highest minimum number that would be required for

each type of Qualified Entity participating in the joint Advisory Committee.

(5) To be qualified to serve on the Advisory Committee for a Qualified Entity that is a Transportation or

Mass Transit District or county, or on a joint Advisory Committee in which a Transportation or Mass

Transit District or county participates, an individual must:

(a) Be knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of residents or employees located

within or traveling to and or from the Transportation or Mass Transit District or county; and

(b) Be a person who is a member of or represents one or more of the following:

(A) local governments, including land use planners;

(B) Public Transportation Service Providers;

(C) non‐profit entities which provide public transportation services;

(D) neighboring Public Transportation Service Providers;

(E) employers;



March 27, 2018 Page 9 of 33 

(F) public health, social and human service providers;

(G) transit users;

(H) transit users who depend on transit for accomplishing daily activities;

(I) individuals age 65 or older;

(J) people  with disabilities;

(K) low‐income individuals;

(L) social equity advocates;

(M) environmental advocates;

(N) bicycle and pedestrian advocates;

(O) people with limited English proficiency;

(P) educational institutions; or,

(Q) major destinations for users of public transit.

(6) Notwithstanding other provisions of this rule, if a Qualified Entity is a Mass Transit District, a

Transportation District or a county, then its Advisory Committee, or the joint Advisory Committee in

which it participates, must include at least one member who is a member of or represents each of the

following three groups:

(a) low‐income individuals;

(b) individuals age 65 or older or people with disabilities; and

(c) Public Transportation Service Providers or non‐profit entities which provide public

transportation services.

(7) A Qualified Entity that is a Mass Transit District or a Transportation District shall include Advisory

Committee members from the district’s area of responsibility, both within and outside district

boundaries.  If a Mass Transit District or a Transportation District is party to a joint Advisory Committee

agreement, the joint Advisory Committee must also include at least one member from outside the

district’s boundary but within the district’s area of responsibility.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.761(4)(a), ORS 184.761(5) 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.761 

732‐040‐0040 

Qualified Entity Management and Joint Management of STIF Funds 

(1) Two or more Qualified Entities may jointly manage the STIF moneys disbursed to them.  The

Qualified Entities shall enter into a written agreement pursuant to ORS chapter 190.

(2) When two or more Qualified Entities jointly manage their STIF Formula Fund moneys, they shall

designate their respective roles and responsibilities in the written agreement and shall send a copy of

the executed agreement to the Agency within 30 days of execution.

(3) Qualified Entities intending to jointly manager STIF moneys under this rule may, but are not required

to, establish a joint Advisory Committee as described in OAR 732‐040‐0030(2).

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(6) 



March 27, 2018 Page 10 of 33 

732‐040‐0045 

Withholding Funds  

(1) The Agency may withhold payment of STIF moneys to a Recipient if:

(a) The Recipient or its Sub‐Recipient is not using STIF funds in accordance with applicable laws,

these rules or the terms of the STIF Plan or agreement under which the funds were distributed;

(b) The Recipient or its Sub‐Recipient has not submitted required reporting;

(c) The Agency determines that there is any unresolved audit finding relating to the accounting

for STIF moneys; or

(d) The Agency determines that there is  any unresolved compliance review finding relating to

the use of STIF moneys.

(2) If an audit or a review of a Recipient or its Sub‐Recipient’s implementation of an agreement under

which STIF moneys were distributed determines that the Recipient or its Sub‐Recipient used STIF

moneys inconsistently with the agreement, the Agency may withhold future STIF funding.

(3) A Qualified Entity may appeal the Agency’s decision to withhold STIF Formula Fund moneys as

described in OAR 732‐040‐0050.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758, ORS 184.766 

732‐040‐0050 

Appeal Procedures 

(1) Appeals are allowed only in the following instances:

(a) A Qualified Entity may appeal the Commission’s rejection of its STIF Plan.

(b) A Qualified Entity may appeal the Agency’s decision to withhold STIF Formula Fund moneys.

(c) A Qualified Entity may appeal the Agency’s decision to take action with respect to a Capital

Asset as described in OAR 732‐042‐00405(10).

(2) Appeals must be filed in writing within 15 days of the date the notice of appealable action was

emailed by the Agency.  A Qualified Entity that fails to file timely shall be deemed to have waived its

appeal rights.  Appeals must be addressed to the Commission and a copy must be sent to the Agency’s

STIF Administrator.

(3) Appeals must identify the appellant, the appellant’s designated contact person, and the decision

under appeal.  In addition, appeals must include the following information:

(a) For appeal of a Commission decision, the requested remedy and any arguments why the

decision should be reconsidered.

(b) For appeal of an Agency decision, the requested remedy, any arguments pertaining to the

appeal and any other material the appellant considers relevant to the appeal.

(4) Upon review or reconsideration, the Commission may make a decision to grant the requested

remedy, deny the appeal, or, in the case of Agency decisions under appeal, remand the decision to the

Agency with instructions to reconsider.

(5) The Commission shall review the appeal and make its decision within 90 days of receipt.



March 27, 2018 Page 11 of 33 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(d), ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758 



March 27, 2018 Page 12 of 33 

Chapter 732, Division 042  

STIF FORMULA FUND 

732‐042‐0000 

Purpose  

This rule establishes procedures and requirements necessary for the administration of the Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) Formula Fund, pursuant to ORS 184.758(1)(a).  The STIF 

Formula Fund is intended to improve public transportation services for current and potential future 

Oregon transit users by distributing moneys to Qualified Entities.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(d), ORS 184.758(3)e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.751(1), ORS 184.758(1)(a), ORS 184.758(6) 

732‐042‐0005 

STIF Formula Fund Cycle 

(1) The STIF Formula Fund cycle will be structured around a Biennium, with key dates and exceptions

identified in these rules.

(2) After the first disbursement of STIF moneys following the enactment of Oregon Laws 2017, chapter

750, the Agency shall make disbursements quarterly beginning at the beginning of the first quarter of

each Biennium, subject to the provisions of OAR 732‐042‐0010.

(3) No later than November 30 of each year, the Agency shall provide written notice to each Qualified

Entity of the estimated allocation of STIF Formula Fund moneys for which it is eligible in the coming

Fiscal Year.

(4) Six months prior to the beginning of a Biennium, Qualified Entities shall submit their STIF Plans to the

Agency.

(5) Qualified Entities may prepare their STIF Plans for a period of one or two Biennia.  The Commission

may approve a STIF Plan for one or two Biennia.

(6) The Commission shall decide to accept or reject STIF Plans no later than July 1 of the coming

Biennium.

(7) The Agency shall email notice of the Commission’s decision to effected Qualified Entities within

seven days of the issuance of the Commission’s decision.  A Qualified Entity may appeal a rejection of its

STIF Plan as described in OAR 732‐040‐0050.

(8) During the first STIF Formula Fund Cycle after the enactment of Oregon Laws 2017, chapter 750, a

Qualified Entity may submit its STIF Plan either three months or nine months after the effective date of

OAR Chapter 732, Division 042.  A Qualified Entity that submits a STIF Plan under this section shall

submit a STIF Plan for a period that ends at the end of the 2019‐2021 Biennium.  The Commission shall

decide to accept or reject a STIF Plan submitted under this section no later than four months after it is

received by the Agency, following the approval procedures described in OAR 732‐042‐0025.



March 27, 2018 Page 13 of 33 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758 

732‐042‐0010 

STIF Formula Fund Calculation and Disbursement  

(1) Ninety percent of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund shall be distributed as the STIF

Formula Fund.

(2) Minimum Distributions:

(a) The Agency shall distribute $100,000 annually to each Qualified Entity unless the Qualified

Entity is entitled to a larger distribution based on the calculation described in section (4) of this

rule.

(b) The Agency shall distribute $100,000 annually to each Indian Tribe unless the Indian Tribe

submits documentation to the Agency demonstrating that it remits more than $100 million

annually in taxable employee payroll from Tribal Enterprises.  Such documentation must be

submitted by July 1 each year in order to be included in estimates and calculations for the

following year.  An Indian Tribe that demonstrates it remits more than $100 million in employee

payroll annually will receive a distribution equal to its proportionate share as calculated in

section (4) of this rule.

(3) Estimation of STIF Formula Fund Disbursements:

(a) The Agency shall estimate STIF Formula Fund disbursements based on the Agency’s

projections of the amount of transit payroll tax to be collected, the Agency’s projections of

minimum distributions required under section (2) of this rule, and the proportionate share

calculated for each Qualified Entity in section (4) of this rule.

(b) The Agency shall estimate the proportionate share annually.

(c) The Agency shall notify Qualified Entities of their estimated annual disbursements no later

than November 30 each year.

(d) Qualified Entities shall work collaboratively with Public Transportation Service Providers and

other potential Sub‐Recipients, as relevant, to develop a method for sub‐allocating STIF Formula

Fund moneys to Public Transportation Service Providers.

(e) To the extent possible, using the best available data, the sub‐allocation method used by

Qualified Entities must be proportionate to the amount of employee payroll tax revenue

generated within the geographic territory of each Public Transportation Service Provider.

(f) A Qualified Entity that is a Mass Transit or Transportation District which does not share

contiguous jurisdictional boundaries with a county shall work collaboratively with Public

Transportation Service Providers and other potential Sub‐Recipients to develop an estimate of

STIF Formula Fund disbursements for those areas of the county(ies) in which the District is

located that are outside the District’s own jurisdictional boundaries.

(g) The Qualified Entity’s sub‐allocation estimate shall be a starting point for the Qualified

Entity’s STIF Plan and funding prioritization process. The sub‐allocation is not an entitlement to

the Public Transportation Service Provider and decision criteria may affect the prioritization of

Projects.



March 27, 2018 Page 14 of 33 

(h) Estimated disbursements are not guaranteed.  If revenues in the Statewide Transportation

Improvement Fund are less than the Agency’s projections, the Agency may proportionately

reduce quarterly payments to Qualified Entities from its estimated disbursements.

(4) Calculation of STIF Formula Fund Disbursements:

(a) The Agency shall calculate the proportionate share for each Qualified Entity by dividing the

amount of the wages paid by employers located within the boundary of the Qualified Entities’

areas of responsibility, by the total amount of the wages paid by employers statewide.

(A) The Agency shall use the final wage data collected by the Oregon Employment

Department for the prior Calendar Year and reported to the Agency.

(B) The Agency shall exclude from the calculation of proportionate shares any Qualified

Entity that is entitled to a minimum distribution under section (2) of this rule.

(b) Each fiscal quarter, the Agency shall calculate the quarterly distribution as follows:

(A) The product of the amount of the transit payroll tax revenue collected in the

preceding fiscal quarter, as reduced by minimum distributions required under

subsection (4)(b)(B) of this rule, multiplied by the Qualified Entity’s proportionate share

calculated in subsection (4)(a) of this rule; or

(B) For Qualified Entities receiving the minimum distribution under section (2) of this

rule, $25,000.

(5) Distribution of STIF Formula Funds to Qualified Entities:

(a) The Agency shall not disburse STIF Formula Fund moneys to a Qualified Entity until the

Commission has approved by the Qualified Entity’s STIF Plan and the Legislative Fiscal Office and

the State’s Chief Financial Officer have determined that there is sufficient revenue in the

Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund sufficient to fund the STIF Formula Fund

disbursements.

(b) The Agency shall disburse the proportionate share of STIF Formula Funds to Qualified Entities

in quarterly distributions.

(c) If more than one Mass Transit District or Transportation District is located within a single

county, the Agency shall distribute the moneys to the larger district.

(d) If there is a significant unexpected shortfall in revenues in the Statewide Transportation

Improvement Fund or if there has been an overpayment in a prior quarter, the Agency may

proportionately reduce quarterly payments to Qualified Entities.

(e) Qualified Entities are not responsible for satisfying Public Transportation Service Providers’

budgetary shortfalls or remedying delays in funding to Public Transportation Service Providers

that are due to insufficient STIF Formula Fund revenues or for any other reason beyond the

Qualified Entities’ direct control.

(6) Qualified Entities may incur STIF expenditures as of the operative date of ORS 184.766. During the

first STIF Formula Fund Cycle after the enactment of Oregon Laws 2017, chapter 750, a Qualified Entity

may reimburse itself for such expenditures contingent upon Commission approval of a STIF Plan that

includes these expenses.

(7) Qualified Entities shall notify the Agency in writing of any adjustment to the geographic boundaries

of their areas of responsibility within thirty days of the effective date of the adjustment.



March 27, 2018 Page 15 of 33 

(8) Upon Commission approval of a STIF Plan that describes such a Project, a Qualified Entity may carry

forward unspent STIF Formula Fund moneys for as long as specified in the approved STIF Plan in order to

accumulate sufficient funds for a capital Project that costs more than can be funded during a single STIF

Formula Fund funding cycle or to make bond payments on the acquisition of a Capital Asset.

(9) Each Qualified Entity is required to spend at least one percent of STIF Formula Fund moneys received

each year on student transit services for students in grades 9 through 12, if Practicable.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e), ORS 184.758 (6) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(a), ORS 184.758(2), ORS 184.758(4), ORS 184.758 (6) 

732‐042‐0015 

STIF Plan Contents 

(1) A Qualified Entity shall adopt a written STIF Plan to establish a list of Projects for public

transportation located within the Qualified Entity’s area of responsibility to guide STIF Formula Fund

investments.

(a) A STIF Plan must cover at least a Biennium, but it may include up to two Biennia subject to

Commission approval.

(b) A STIF Plan must address the transportation needs of people residing in or traveling into and

out of the Qualified Entity’s area of responsibility.

(c) A Qualified Entity that is a Mass Transit District or Transportation District with jurisdictional

boundaries within a county or counties which are not Qualified Entities shall adopt a STIF Plan

that considers the Public Transportation Services for the area outside of district boundaries but

within the remainder of the county or counties.

(d) A STIF Plan may be included in a Qualified Entity’s Local Plan or it may be a stand‐alone plan.

(e) The STIF Plan must contain an explanation of how the plan defines and identifies

communities with a high percentage of Low‐Income Households.

(f) A STIF Plan must include a description of the Qualified Entity’s method to sub‐allocate STIF

Formula Fund moneys to Public Transportation Service Providers and other potential Sub‐

Recipients and the process for developing the method.

(2) A Qualified Entity’s STIF Plan must contain the following sections:

(a) Descriptions of Proposed Projects:

For each proposed Project, the STIF Plan must include the factors listed in section (3) of this rule.

(b) Summary of Planned Expenditures:

The STIF Plan must include a summary listing:

(A) the total funding sought in the STIF Plan;

(B) the total funding sought for each Recipient or Sub‐Recipient (Public Transportation

Service Provider or Qualified Entity); and,

(C) for Qualified Entities that are Mass Transit Districts or Transportation Districts which

do not share contiguous jurisdictional boundaries with a single county, the total

funding sought for by geographic area inside and outside the district’s jurisdictional

boundary but within its area of responsibility.



March 27, 2018 Page 16 of 33 

(c) Summary of Prior Expenditures on Specific Improvements:

If the Qualified Entity received STIF Formula Funds in the preceding two Fiscal Years, the STIF 

Plan must include a summary of the amount of moneys allocated to fund each of the following:  

(A) increased frequency of bus service schedules in communities with a high percentage

of Low‐Income Households;

(B) the expansion of bus routes and bus services to reach communities with a high

percentage of Low‐Income Households;

(C) fund the implementation of programs to reduce fares for public transportation in

communities with a high percentage of Low‐Income Households;

(D) the procurement of buses that are powered by natural gas, electricity or other low

or no emission propulsion for use in areas with populations of 200,000 or more;

(E) the improvement in the frequency and reliability of service connections between

communities inside and outside of the Qualified Entity’s service area;

(F) Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers to reduce

fragmentation in the provision of transportation services; and

(G) implementation of programs to provide student transit services for students in

grades 9 through 12.

(d) Summary of Current Projects:

The STIF Plan must include a summary of Projects recommended by the Qualified Entity’s

Advisory Committee for the duration of the STIF Plan, identified by Fiscal Year.

(e) Advisory Committee Information:

The STIF Plan must include a list of the Qualified Entity’s current Advisory Committee and the 

online or other location(s) where Advisory Committee materials may be reviewed as described 

in OAR 732‐040‐0030(4)(b).  In addition, the STIF Plan must include a statement that the 

Qualified Entity consulted with its Advisory Committee as required by these rules and, if 

applicable, an explanation of why the Advisory Committee’s recommendation was not adopted 

by the Governing Body. 

(f) Recipient Accountability Methods:

The STIF Plan must include a description of the methods the Qualified Entity will use to ensure 

that it complies with these rules and achieves the goals identified in the STIF Plan. 

(g) Sub‐Recipient Accountability Methods:

The STIF Plan must include a description of the methods and agreement or contract language 

that the Qualified Entity will use to oversee its Sub‐Recipients, address deficiencies in Sub‐

Recipient performance, and to ensure that the Qualified Entity can accomplish the applicable 

requirements of these rules, including but not limited to audit and compliance requirements, 

accounting requirements, capital asset requirements and reporting requirements. 

(h) Remediation Strategies:

If the Qualified Entity has submitted three or more Quarterly Reports within the past two years

which indicate that it failed to substantially comply with its approved STIF Plan, the STIF Plan

must include a description of the Qualified Entity’s strategies to ensure that it will substantially

comply with the proposed STIF Plan.

(i) Governing Body Adoption:



March 27, 2018 Page 17 of 33 

The STIF Plan must include documentation that the Governing Body approved the STIF Plan prior 

to its submittal to the Agency.  If STIF Formula funds will be jointly managed by two or more 

Qualified Entities, documentation demonstrating each Governing Body’s commitment to joint 

management.   

(3) The STIF Plan must include descriptions of each proposed Project as described below.  A Qualified

Entity shall include in its STIF Plan only Projects which appear in a Local Plan. Qualified Entities eligible

for no more than the minimum STIF Formula Fund allocation under OAR 732‐042‐0010(2) or Rural Public

Transportation Service Providers that are unable to meet the Local Plan requirements during the first

Formula Fund solicitation cycle may use a portion of their first STIF Formula Fund allocation or sub‐

allocation to improve public transportation services if they have a current approved Coordinated Human

Services Public Transportation Plan and if they also use a portion of the first allocation or sub‐allocation

to develop a Local Plan that is  consistent with STIF Local Plan requirements. For each proposed Project,

the STIF Plan must describe:

(a) Proposed funding level for: each Project and a description of what the Qualified Entity

intends to do with the STIF Formula Fund moneys it receives for the individual Project.

(b) Whether the Project would improve or expand public transportation or maintain an existing

service. For Projects that would maintain an existing public transportation service, the STIF Plan

must specify the amount and percentage of each Project budget for this purpose and the reason

for proposing any Project that maintains an existing service rather than a Project that improves

or expands service.

(c) Anticipated benefits and discrete measurable outcomes associated with each Project with

specific reference to whether the Project:

(A) increases the frequency of bus service schedules in communities with a high percentage

of Low‐Income Households;

(B) expands bus routes and bus services to reach communities with a high percentage of

Low‐Income Households;

(C) implements programs to reduce fares for public transportation in communities with a

high percentage of Low‐Income Households;

(D) procures buses that are powered by natural gas, electricity or other low or no emission

propulsion for use in areas with populations of 200,000 or more;

(E) improves the frequency and reliability of service connections between communities

inside and outside of the Qualified Entity’s service area;

(F) fosters Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers to reduce

fragmentation in the provision of transportation services; and

(G) provides student transit services for students in grades 9 through 12.

(d) Identification of the Local Plan(s) from which each Project was derived and identification of

the board, council, commission, or other governing body which approved the Local Plan.

(e) The proposed Recipient or Sub‐Recipient of the STIF Formula Fund moneys for that Project.

(f) A full budget including fund sources and for yet‐to‐be obligated fund sources, the timing for

funding decisions, if known.



March 27, 2018 Page 18 of 33 

(g) For proposed Projects which are part of a larger multi‐phase Project, the phasing plan

including schedule and budget with known and potential funding sources identified.

(h) The amount of moneys from the STIF Formula Fund distribution that would be allocated to

fund each of the following:

(A) increased frequency of bus service schedules in communities with a high percentage of

Low‐Income Households;

(B) the expansion of bus routes and bus services to reach communities with a high

percentage of Low‐Income Households;

(C) the implementation of programs to reduce fares for public transportation in

communities with a high percentage of Low‐Income Households;

(D) the procurement of buses that are powered by natural gas, electricity or other low or no

emission propulsion for use in areas with populations of 200,000 or more;

(E) the improvement in the frequency and reliability of service connections between

communities inside and outside of the Qualified Entity’s service area;

(F) Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers to reduce fragmentation

in the provision of transportation services; and

(G) the implementation of programs to provide student transit services for students in

grades 9 through 12.

(i) Identification of the extent to which the Project is consistent with Oregon Public

Transportation Plan goals, policies, and implementation plans.

(j) At least one Project described in the STIF Plan must implement a program(s) to provide

student transit services for students in grades 9 through 12, if Practicable, and allocate at least

one percent of the Qualified Entity’s estimated STIF Formula Fund disbursement to that

program(s).  If the Qualified Entity determines that it is not Practicable to identify such a Project

or to allocate funding for this purpose, it shall specify in its STIF Plan the reason(s) for its

determination.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(c), ORS 184.758(6) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758 

732‐042‐0020 

Advisory Committee Review of Proposed Projects  

(1) Public Transportation Providers seeking STIF funding from a Qualified Entity through the Qualified

Entity’s STIF Plan shall submit a Project proposal to its Advisory Committee for review and approval.

The Project proposal must include the contents described in OAR 732‐042‐0015(3).

(2) The Advisory Committee shall conduct its reviews and activities in compliance with its written

bylaws, as described these rules.

(3) The Advisory Committee shall meet as often as needed to advise the Qualified Entity and review

Project proposals but no less than two times per year.

(4) The Advisory Committee shall

(a) Hold public meetings, as applicable, to review every Project proposed for inclusion in the

Qualified Entity’s STIF Plan;



March 27, 2018 Page 19 of 33 

(b) Recommend approval or rejection of proposed Projects and recommend prioritization of

approved Projects within the geographic boundary for which the Qualified Entity receives STIF

Formula funding to the Governing Body.

(5) The Advisory Committee shall consider the following criteria when reviewing STIF Formula Fund

Projects:

(a) Whether the Project would:

(A) increase the frequency of bus service to communities with a high percentage of Low‐

Income Households;

(B) expand bus routes and bus services to serve communities with a high percentage of

Low‐Income Households;

(C) reduce fares for public transportation in communities with a high percentage of Low‐

Income Households;

(D) result in procurement of buses that are powered by natural gas or electricity for use in

areas with a population of 200,000 or more;

(E) improve the frequency and reliability of service connections between communities

inside and outside of the Qualified Entity’s service area;

(F) increase Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers to reduce

fragmentation in the provision of public transportation service; or

(G) expand student transit services for students in grades 9 through 12;

(b) Whether the Project would maintain an existing, productive service;

(c) The extent to which the Project goals meet public transportation needs and are a responsible

use of public funds; and

(d) Other factors to be determined by the Qualified Entity or Advisory Committee such as

geographic equity.

(6) Prior to adopting a STIF Plan, the Governing Body shall consult its Advisory Committee regarding the

Projects proposed in the STIF Plan and seek a recommendation on the prioritization of those Projects

from the Advisory Committee.  The purpose of this consultation is to ensure that the STIF Plans reflect a

Coordinated regional approach to Public Transportation Service that considers the public transportation

needs of people residing and traveling into and out of the geographic territory of a Qualified Entity as

well as larger regional population centers and to ensure that interested parties have the opportunity to

review and comment on the proposed STIF Plan.

(7) A Governing Body may accept the Advisory Committee’s recommendation to approve or reject  a

Project proposal and consider the Advisory Committee’s recommended prioritized list of Projects, may

return it to the Advisory Committee for modifications, or may modify it prior to inclusion in the STIF Plan

for submittal to the Agency.  If the Governing Body modifies the Advisory Committee’s

recommendation, it shall inform any affected Public Transportation Service Provider of all modifications

and the explanation for such changes.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.761(4)(b), ORS 184.761(4)(c) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758, ORS 184.761 

732‐042‐0025 



March 27, 2018 Page 20 of 33 

Commission Approval of STIF Plan 

(1) The Agency shall review the STIF Plan submitted by a Qualified Entity for completeness and may ask

the Qualified Entity to supply missing information or to provide clarification about the meaning  or

intent of any portion of the STIF Plan.

(2) The Agency shall submit each complete STIF Plan to the Public Transportation Advisory Committee

(PTAC) for review.

(3) The PTAC shall timely determine whether it proposes to recommend that the Commission approve

or reject all or a portion of the STIF Plan.

(a) If the PTAC determines that it will recommend rejection of all or a portion of the STIF Plan, it

shall timely prepare a brief written statement of the reasons for its recommendation.  Within

seven days of the PTAC’s preparation of the statement, the Agency shall provide notice of the

PTAC’s intended recommendation and a copy of the statement of reasons to the Qualified

Entity.

(b) The PTAC shall timely communicate its recommendation to the Commission.

(c) The PTAC, when making its recommendation and the Commission when making its decision

on a STIF Plan shall consider the extent to which the STIF Plan meets the requirements described

in OAR 732‐042‐0015(1), (2) and (3).

(4) A Qualified Entity that receives notice that the PTAC intends to recommend rejection of all or a

portion of a STIF Plan under subsection (3)(a) of this rule may attach additional information and a

revised STIF Plan for the Commission’s consideration to the STIF Plan originally submitted.  The Qualified

Entity shall provide the additional information to the Agency within 30 days.

(5) The Commission shall consider the PTAC’s recommendation and determine whether to approve or

reject the STIF Plan originally submitted by the Qualified Entity or a revised STIF Plan submitted by the

Qualified Entity under section (4) of this rule.  If the Commission rejects a proposed STIF Plan, the

Commission shall identify the reasons for the rejection and the Agency shall provide the reasons to the

Qualified Entity in writing.  Reasons for Commission rejection include, but are not limited to:

(a) The Qualified Entity did not establish an Advisory Committee or established one inconsistent

with membership requirements in these rules;

(b) The Qualified Entity failed to confer with its Advisory Committee;

(c) The STIF Plan is incomplete or does not adequately explain how the Qualified Entity will

accomplish the goals of the Projects in the STIF Plan, including Recipient Accountability

Methods, Sub‐Recipient Accountability Methods, or Remediation Strategies, if applicable;

(d) The STIF Plan does not contain the sections and elements listed in OAR 732‐042‐0015(1), (2)

and (3); and

(e) Whether the Qualified Entity failed to expend STIF Formula funds in a manner that

substantially complied with a prior approved STIF Plan.

(6) A Qualified Entity may file an appeal as described in OAR 732‐040‐0050 if its STIF Plan is rejected by

the Commission.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(d),   ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758 



March 27, 2018 Page 21 of 33 

732‐042‐0030 

Qualified Entity Failure to Apply or Withdrawal from the STIF Formula Fund 

(1) Unless a Qualified Entity has an approved STIF Plan and is receiving quarterly distributions, the

Agency shall accumulate STIF Formula Fund moneys for which a Qualified Entity is eligible, as calculated

by the Agency pursuant to OAR 732‐042‐0010, for a period of one Biennium.

(2) If a Qualified Entity fails to submit timely a STIF Plan for two consecutive STIF Formula Fund Cycles, as

described in OAR 732‐042‐0005, the Agency shall release any STIF Formula Fund moneys accumulated

for the Qualified Entity to the STIF Formula Fund generally for redistribution to other Qualified Entities.

(3) If a Qualified Entity timely submits a STIF Plan but the STIF Plan is rejected by the Commission for two

consecutive STIF Formula Fund Cycles, as described in OAR 732‐042‐0005, and neither rejection is

overcome by an appeal or reconsideration, the Agency shall release any STIF Formula Fund moneys

accumulated for the Qualified Entity to the STIF Formula Fund generally for redistribution to other

Qualified Entities.

(4) Qualified Entities eligible to receive STIF Formula Fund moneys may voluntarily withdraw from

eligibility.  A Qualified Entity intending to withdraw its eligibility shall notify the Agency of the decision to

withdraw and the time period during which it wishes to withdraw its eligibility (such as the remainder of

the current Biennium, all future Biennia, etc.).  Upon the Qualified Entity’s withdrawal, the Agency shall

release any STIF Formula Fund moneys accumulated or designated for the Qualified Entity to the STIF

Formula Fund for redistribution to other Qualified Entities.  During the period of withdrawal, the

withdrawn Qualified Entity must be excluded from the Agency’s calculations under OAR 732‐042‐0010.

A Qualified Entity may rescind its withdrawal at any time by written notice to the Agency.  If a Qualified

Entity rescinds its withdrawal, it will be eligible to receive STIF Formula Fund disbursements in the next

STIF Formula Fund Cycle, contingent upon Commission approval of its STIF Plan under these rules.

(5) Any interest accrued on STIF Formula Fund moneys accumulated by the Agency under this rule must

be credited to the STIF Formula Fund generally.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.751(1), ORS 184.758 

732‐042‐0035 

Reporting Requirements 

(1) Quarterly Reports:

Using a form provided by the Agency, each Qualified Entity shall prepare a quarterly report to the

Agency which details Project progress, outcomes achieved, and expenditures of STIF Formula Fund

moneys by itself and its Sub‐Recipients.  The quarterly report must be submitted no later than 45 days

following the end of a quarter. The fourth and eighth quarter reports may be preliminary reports,

subject to adjustment after completion of the Qualified Entity’s audit.

(2) STIF Plan Period Reconciliation:

Within 30 days of the end of an approved STIF Plan period, the Agency shall reconcile disbursements

made to the Qualified Entity against the Qualified Entity’s reported expenditures.  If disbursements are



March 27, 2018 Page 22 of 33 

found to exceed the expenditures, the amount must be carried forward by the Qualified Entity into the 

next STIF Formula Fund Cycle. 

(3) Capital Asset Reports:

Qualified Entities that have acquired, purchased or leased Capital Assets using STIF Formula Fund

moneys shall provide the Agency with a report of the Capital Asset inventory, described in OAR 732‐042‐

0040(2), including an identification of any sale, transfer or other disposition of the Capital Asset as

described in OAR 732‐042‐0040. Capital Asset Reports must be submitted to the Agency on a schedule

to be specified by the Agency, but must be submitted at least annually within 30 days of the end of each

Fiscal Year.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758, ORS 184.766 

732‐042‐0040 

Capital Asset Requirements 

(1) Recipients shall ensure Satisfactory Continuing Control of a Capital Asset purchased in whole or part

with STIF funding during the period of its useful life.

(2) Recipients shall inventory Capital Assets purchased in whole or part with STIF moneys. The inventory

will include a description of the Capital Asset, date of purchase, purchase price, amount of STIF moneys

contributed to the purchase, the source of other funds, the authorized use, the Recipient or Sub‐

Recipient using the Capital Asset, and the condition of the asset.

(a) If Capital Asset is a vehicle, the inventory must include the size of vehicle, the total number

of passenger seats, the total number of ADA stations, the total number of seats when all ADA

stations are deployed, the current mileage, and its current condition.

(b) If Capital Asset is an improvement to real property, such as a facility, building, or transit

shelter, the inventory must include the location of the Capital Asset and its current condition.

(3) Vehicles may be replaced using STIF funding if:

(a) Public Transportation Service Provider holds clear title to the vehicle(s) being replaced.

Salvaged titles will not be accepted.

(b) The vehicle(s) has met the useful life guidelines established by Agency.

(c) The vehicle has not been previously replaced.

(4) To be eligible to receive STIF Formula Fund moneys to acquire revenue vehicle(s) for the expansion

of transit service, a Qualified Entity shall demonstrate in its STIF Plan that the Recipient or Sub‐Recipient

who will acquire the Capital Asset has committed to continually use the vehicle for the approved

purpose for the useful life of the vehicle(s).

(5) To be eligible to receive STIF moneys for a real property Capital Asset, such as a transit facility, bus

barn, maintenance facility, land, or administration building, a Qualified Entity shall demonstrate in its

STIF Plan one or more of the following:

(a) Recipient or Sub‐Recipient ownership of the property upon which the Capital Asset will be

located;

(b) Recipient or Sub‐Recipient possession of an executed lease agreement for the property

location that will be in place for the useful life of the Capital Asset;



March 27, 2018 Page 23 of 33 

(c) Recipient or Sub‐Recipient possession of an executed lien on the property for the useful life

of the Capital Asset;

(d) In the case of a Project which will utilize property owned by a local city, county or

government, an executed intergovernmental agreement with the property owner guaranteeing

ongoing use for the duration of the useful life of the Capital Asset; or

(e) In the case of a Project to purchase land, an option to purchase the land identified in the

Project.

(6) Qualified Entities shall:

(a) Establish useful life standards for Capital Assets acquired pursuant to their STIF Plans which

meet or exceed the duration of those established by the Agency.

(b) Use the Agency's published procedures or substantially similar procedures and ensure that

Sub‐Recipients use the same procedures for the disposition of Capital Assets acquired with STIF

Formula Fund moneys.

(c) Retain the net proceeds from a sale or other disposition of a Capital Asset to reinvest in a

future STIF Plan capital Project or return the net proceeds to the Agency.  Net proceeds are the

disposal proceeds less original value, less depreciation, less disposal costs.  If non‐STIF funds

were used in the original purchase, then only the proportion representing STIF Formula Fund

contribution to the purchase are subject to this rule.

(d) Establish written procedures to ensure that a Capital Asset is maintained in safe operating

condition.

(e) Maintain insurance coverage, or require Sub‐Recipients to maintain insurance coverage, that

meets or exceeds the standards in ORS 806.070.

(f) Ensure that vehicles purchased in whole or in part with STIF Formula Fund moneys are titled

with the Oregon Department of Transportation Driver and Motor Vehicle Services Division

pursuant to ORS 803.045 and supporting rules, with the Agency listed as a security interest

holder, subject to the following additional requirements:

(A) If the vehicle is registered in the name of a Sub‐Recipient receiving the vehicle, and

the Sub‐Recipient is not a Qualified Entity or Public Transportation Service Provider,

then the Qualified Entity or Public Transportation Service Provider must be listed on the

vehicle title as the primary security interest holder.

(B) If the vehicle was purchased with federal funds in addition to STIF Formula Fund

moneys, and the federal funding source requires the vehicle to be titled otherwise than

provided in this rule, then the federal titling requirements prevail.

(7) A Recipient shall notify the Agency of the sale, transfer or other disposition of a Capital Asset

purchased with STIF Formula Fund moneys and shall report the use of proceeds, if any, from the sale to

the Agency.

(8) A Recipient may transfer its interest in a Capital Asset to an asset of equal or greater value if the

transfer is proposed in a STIF Plan which is approved by the Commission.

(9) When the Agency is a security interest holder in a Capital Asset, the Agency may exercise all of the

rights provided to a secured lien holder under Oregon law, including without limitation, the ability to

take control or possession of the Capital Asset if it determines either:



March 27, 2018 Page 24 of 33 

(a) that the asset is not being used for the purpose described in a STIF Plan under which it was

funded in whole or part by STIF Formula Fund moneys; or

(b) if, during a compliance audit conducted pursuant to OAR 732‐040‐0015, the Agency

determines the asset is not being maintained in a state of good operational repair.

(10) A Qualified Entity may file an appeal as described in OAR 732‐040‐0050 if the Agency takes action

under section (9) of this rule with respect to a Capital Asset funded in whole or part by STIF Formula

Fund moneys originally distributed to the Qualified Entity.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(3)(e) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758 



March 27, 2018 Page 25 of 33 

Chapter 732, Division 044  
DISCRETIONARY STIF FUNDS 

732-044-0000
Purposes of the Funds 
(1) The Discretionary Fund is intended to provide a flexible funding source to improve public

transportation in Oregon.  It is not a source of ongoing operations funding.

(2)The Intercommunity Discretionary Fund is for improving connections between communities and

between communities and other key destinations important for a connected Statewide Transit Network.

As a competitive funding source, ongoing operations Projects are subject to risk of not receiving

continuous funding.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

732-044-0005
Project Eligibility and Match 
(1) Projects eligible to receive grants under the Discretionary Fund include, but are not limited to: capital

projects such as vehicles, facilities, equipment, and technology, as well as mobility management,

planning, and research. Pilot operations projects may be considered for funding if the application

includes a feasible financial plan for ongoing operations beyond the initial pilot period.

(2) Projects eligible to receive grants under the Intercommunity Discretionary Fund include, but are not

limited to: capital Projects such as vehicles, facilities, equipment, and technology as well as mobility

management, planning, research, and operations. Pilot and ongoing operations projects may be

considered for funding under the Intercommunity Discretionary Fund if the application includes a

feasible financial plan for ongoing operations beyond the initial pilot period.

(3) Projects eligible to receive grants under the Discretionary and Intercommunity Discretionary Funds

must appear in a Local Plan, as defined in OAR 732‐040‐0005(17), or be a Project that meets one or

more of the characteristics in sections (4)(a)(C)‐(D) of this rule.

(4) Match Requirements:

(a) An applicant shall demonstrate the ability to provide a match of at least 20 percent of the

total Project’s cost, unless any of the following characteristics exist in which case the applicant

shall demonstrate the ability to provide a 10 percent match:

(A) The Project will predominantly serve or provide access to and from rural

communities (communities outside of urbanized areas with populations of 50,000

people or less);

(B) The Project will serve an area located outside of a Public Transportation Service

Provider’s geographic jurisdiction;

(C) The Project will fill a significant gap in the Statewide Transit Network; or



March 27, 2018 Page 26 of 33 

(D) The Project will provide statewide benefits to multiple Public Transportation Service

Providers. The applicant shall identify the benefits to areas outside the jurisdiction

where the Project will be located.

(b) Eligible Project match sources may include federal funds and certain state funds (STIF

Formula or Special Transportation Funds) for public transportation purposes, local funds, private

contributions, and in‐kind labor or contributions. Match contributions, including Capital Assets

such as property, shall be used only once as match on a single Project and may not be used

again as a match.  Fare box revenues are not eligible match.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

732-044-0010
Solicitation and Application Submission Periods 
(1) The Agency shall announce time periods and dates for submitting applications for funding.

(2) Applications that are rejected may be resubmitted during subsequent application submission

periods.

(3) The Agency may combine Discretionary Fund and Intercommunity Discretionary Fund solicitations

with each other or with other state or federal fund solicitations and offer them in a single grant

solicitation cycle.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

732-044-0015
Application Requirements 
(1) Public Transportation Service Providers interested in receiving discretionary STIF moneys shall submit

a written application to the Agency.

(2) The Agency will prescribe the application format and content. At a minimum, for each Project

proposed, the grant application must include:

(a) A description of the Project scope, schedule, budget, deliverables and expected quantifiable

outcomes;

(b) A phasing plan for multi‐phase Projects that is planned to be completed after the funding

period specified in the solicitation;

(c) A description of how the Project will support the purpose, as applicable, of either the

Discretionary Fund or the Intercommunity Discretionary Fund, as described in OAR 732‐044‐

0000;

(d) A budget that specifies amounts by source, including match and any other funds that may be

leveraged to complete the proposed Project;

(e) A list of any Sub‐Recipients of the grant funds, if applicable;



March 27, 2018 Page 27 of 33 

(f) For capital construction Projects, documentation to validate the Project schedule and costs

and documentation of control of any real property, as applicable;

(g) A description of the dollar amount and source of the applicant’s matching funds as described

in OAR 732‐044‐0005(4); and

(h) A written explanation of how the applicant meets the Recipient Qualifications described in

OAR 732‐044‐0020.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b), ORS 

184.761(2) 

732-044-0020
Recipient Qualifications 
(1) Only Public Transportation Service Providers are eligible to be Recipients of Discretionary Fund and

Intercommunity Discretionary Fund moneys.

(2) Recipients shall meet, or demonstrate the capacity to meet, the following qualifications, as

applicable to the type of Project being funded.

(a) Be an entity eligible to enter into agreements;

(b) Have the legal, managerial and operational capacity to perform the Project within the agreed

schedule;

(c) Not be debarred or suspended from receiving federal grants;

(d) Maintain compliance with federal, state and local laws and regulations including, and not

limited to, those pertaining to passenger transportation, civil rights, labor, insurance, safety and

health, as applicable;

(e) Comply with applicable laws, these rules, and the policies of the applicable grant fund;

(f) Properly use STIF moneys; and

(g) Perform the Project in a safe, prudent and timely manner.

(3) A Recipient may require additional eligibility qualifications of Sub‐Recipients.

(4) The Recipient shall confirm the eligibility of a Sub‐Recipient prior to distributing STIF moneys and

entering into an agreement with the Sub‐Recipient.

(5) The Recipient shall ensure that Sub‐Recipients maintain eligibility while receiving STIF moneys.

(6) If the Agency determines that a Sub‐Recipient has been ineligible for any period during which it

receives STIF moneys, the Agency shall require the Recipient to repay moneys received by the Sub‐

Recipient during the period of ineligibility.  If a Recipient determines that a Sub‐Recipient becomes

ineligible at any time when it was receiving STIF funds, the Recipient shall promptly notify the Agency’s

STIF Administrator in writing.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 



March 27, 2018 Page 28 of 33 

732-044-0025
Advisory Committee Review of Projects Under the Discretionary STIF Funds  
(1) The Agency shall provide a copy of any grant application it receives to the appropriate Qualified

Entity.

(2) Each Qualified Entity that receives a copy of a grant application from the Agency shall timely provide

the copy to its Advisory Committee or the joint Advisory Committee in which it participates.

(3) Each Advisory Committee shall review Project applications submitted to it and shall provide a written

recommendation to its respective Qualified Entity(ies) stating whether the Commission should award

funding for the Project.

(4) Each Qualified Entity shall submit the recommendation of its Advisory Committee, or the joint

Advisory Committee in which it participates, to the Agency within the timelines specified in the grant

solicitation cycle.

(5) Each Advisory Committee may recommend a prioritized list of Projects to the Qualified Entity(ies)

that formed it, concerning the Qualified Entity’s(ies’) area(s) of responsibility.  Each Qualified Entity shall

provide the prioritized list of Projects to the Agency within the timelines specified in the grant

solicitation cycle.

(6) An Advisory Committee shall conduct its review and activities in compliance with its written bylaws,

as described in OAR 732‐040‐0030.

(7) When reviewing a Project proposal for acceptance, rejection or prioritization, an Advisory Committee

shall consider the extent to which the Project:

(a) Supports the Purpose, as applicable, of the Discretionary Fund or the Intercommunity

Discretionary Fund, as described in OAR 732‐044‐0000;

(b) Meets the criteria established under OAR 732‐044‐0030(1); and

(c) Meets any additional criteria established by the Commission.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(e), ORS 

184.761(4) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b), ORS 

184.761 

732-044-0030
Project Selection 
(1) The Commission shall determine its investment priorities with input from the Public Transportation

Advisory Committee prior to Agency public notice of grant solicitation for discretionary STIF moneys.

The Commission’s investment priorities are:

(a) Improvement of Public Transportation Service to Low‐Income Households;

(b) Improved Coordination between Public Transportation Service Providers and reduced

fragmentation of Public Transportation Services;

(c) Consistency with Oregon Public Transportation Plan goals, policies, and implementation

plans, including:

(A) Integrated public transportation planning where affected communities planned or

partnered to develop proposed Projects.



March 27, 2018 Page 29 of 33 

(B)Technological innovations that improve efficiencies and promote a seamless and easy

to use Statewide Transit Network.

(C) Advancement of State greenhouse gas emission reduction goals.

(D) Support or improvement of a useful and well connected Statewide Transit Network;

(d) Operations Projects that do not substantially rely on discretionary state funding beyond a

pilot phase;

(e) Geographic equity or an ability to leverage other funds (these factors apply when all other

priorities are held equal); and

(f) Other factors as determined by the Commission.

(2) The Agency shall review applications for compliance with the Application Requirements described in

OAR 732‐044‐0015. The Agency may ask the applicants to supply missing information or to provide

clarification about the meaning or intent of any portion of an application.  Applicants shall respond to

Agency inquiries within the time frame described in the solicitation documents.

(3) The Agency shall make Project applications available to ACTs for review and comment to the Public

Transportation Advisory Committee.

(4) The Agency shall prepare a recommendation to Public Transportation Advisory Committee with a

prioritized list of applications to be accepted and applications to be rejected considering input from the

Advisory Committees and ACTs.

(5) The Public Transportation Advisory Committee shall review and recommend a list of prioritized

Projects for funding to the Commission, considering input from the Agency, Advisory Committees, and

ACTs.

(6) The Commission shall determine the acceptance or rejection of grant applications for discretionary

STIF moneys.

(7) The Agency shall email notice of the Commission’s determination to applicants within seven days of

the Commission’s determination

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

732-044-0035
Agreements 
(1) The Agency and a Recipient shall enter into a written agreement after approval of the Recipient’s

application for STIF moneys and prior to the disbursement of the approved funds.   At a minimum, the

agreement must include:

(a) A statement of work, describing the use of the STIF moneys;

(b) A beginning and termination date;

(c) Provisions which allow termination of the agreement, suspension of disbursement of funds,

and which obligate the Recipient to repayment of funds, in accordance with these rules;

(d) Provisions to accomplish other applicable requirements of these rules, including but not

limited to audit and compliance requirements, accounting requirements, capital asset

requirements and reporting requirements;



March 27, 2018 Page 30 of 33 

(e) Provisions which permit withholding or require repayment of funds if the Recipient fails to

comply with the requirements of the agreement or these Rules; and

(f) Provisions which recognize that the Recipient is responsible for the performance, oversight,

and legal or regulatory requirements described in the agreement, and for  management and

repayment of STIF funds, regardless of any agreement which contains an assignment or

delegation to a Sub‐Recipient or any other party, and that any such agreement must be in

writing.

(2) Project activities described on the grant application must be reflected in the Project descriptions as

set forth in the grant agreement.

(3) The Recipient shall enter into written agreements with Sub‐Recipients for projects funded with

discretionary STIF moneys within 90 days of the Commission’s decision to award funding.  Such

agreements must include provisions obligating Sub‐Recipients to carry out or assist Recipients to carry

out, the obligations imposed by these rules, including but not limited to audit and compliance

requirements, accounting requirements, reporting requirements, repayment of funds, and capital asset

requirements.

(4) The Recipient shall submit copies of its agreements with Sub‐Recipients to the Agency within 30 days

of execution.

(5) The Recipient shall be responsible for performance, oversight, and legal or regulatory requirements

described in its agreement with the Agency, and for management and repayment of STIF moneys,

regardless of any agreement which contains an assignment or delegation to a Sub‐Recipient or any other

party.  If a Recipient determines that a Sub‐Recipient has failed to meet a term or condition of the

agreement, the Recipient shall promptly notify the Agency in writing, identifying the Sub‐Recipient and

describing the nature of its failure.

(6) The Agency may terminate or suspend an agreement between itself and a Recipient, and may

require repayment of funds by the Recipient to the Agency, if the Recipient fails to take appropriate

action against a Sub‐Recipient failing to comply with the written agreement between the Recipient and

Sub‐Recipient.

(7) Any unused discretionary STIF moneys will be de‐obligated at the end of the agreement period and

redistributed as part of the next Discretionary Fund or Intercommunity Discretionary Fund solicitation

cycle, as applicable.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

732-044-0040
Reporting Requirements 
(1) Quarterly Reports:

(a) Using a form or web‐based system provided by the Agency, each Recipient shall prepare a

quarterly report to the Agency which details Project progress, outcomes achieved, and

expenditures of discretionary STIF moneys by itself and its Sub‐Recipients.



March 27, 2018 Page 31 of 33 

(b) The Agency may require additional documentation or deliverables appropriate to the type of

Project specified in the grant agreement with the Recipient. Recipients may require additional

reporting from its Sub‐Recipient.

(c) The Quarterly report must be submitted no later than 45 days following the end of each

quarter. The fourth and eighth quarter reports may be preliminary reports, subject to

adjustment after the completion of the Recipient’s audit.

(2) Capital Assets:  Recipients that have acquired, purchased or leased Capital Assets using STIF

discretionary funds shall provide the Agency with a report of the Capital Asset inventory, described OAR

732‐044‐0050. Recipients of Capital Assets will report regularly as specified by the Agency, during the

period of useful life or exceeding useful life while still in use for public transportation of the Capital

Asset.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

732-044-0045
Withholding or Repayment of Funds  
(1) The Agency may withhold payment of discretionary STIF moneys to, or seek reimbursement from, a

Recipient if:

(a) The Recipient or its Sub‐Recipient is not using STIF moneys in accordance with applicable

laws, these rules or the terms of the agreement under which the funds were distributed;

(b) The Recipient or its Sub‐Recipient has not submitted required reporting;

(c) The Agency determines that there is any unresolved audit finding relating to the accounting

for STIF moneys; or

(d) The Agency determines that there is any unresolved compliance review finding relating to

the use of STIF moneys.

(2) If an audit or a review of a Recipient or a Sub‐Recipient’s implementation of an agreement under

which STIF moneys were distributed determines that the Recipient or a Sub‐Recipient used STIF moneys

inconsistently with the agreement, the Recipient shall repay the STIF portion used improperly to the

Agency.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b), ORS 

184.786 

732-044-0050
Capital Asset Requirements 
(1) Recipients shall ensure Satisfactory Continuing Control of a Capital Asset purchased in whole or part

with STIF funding during the period of its useful life.

(2) Recipients shall inventory Capital Assets purchased in whole or part with STIF moneys. The inventory

will include a description of the Capital Asset, date of purchase, purchase price, amount of STIF moneys



 

 

March 27, 2018    Page 32 of 33 
 

contributed to the purchase, the source of other funds, the authorized use, the Recipient or Sub‐

Recipient using the Capital Asset, and the condition of the asset.  

(a) If Capital Asset is a vehicle, the inventory must include the size of vehicle, the total number 

of passenger seats, the total number of ADA stations, the total number of seats when all ADA 

stations are deployed, the current mileage, and its current condition.  

(b) If Capital Asset is an improvement to real property, such as a facility, building, or transit 

shelter, the inventory must include the location of the Capital Asset and its current condition. 

(3) Vehicles may be replaced using STIF funding only if: 

(a) Recipient holds clear title to the vehicle(s) being replaced. Salvaged titles will not be 

accepted. 

(b) The vehicle(s) has met the useful life guidelines established by Agency. 

(c) The vehicle has not been previously replaced. 

(4) To be eligible to receive discretionary STIF moneys to acquire vehicle(s), a Public Transportation 

Service Provider  shall demonstrate in its grant application and grant agreement that the Recipient or 

Sub‐Recipient who will acquire the Capital Asset has committed to continually use the vehicle for the 

approved purpose for the useful life of the vehicle(s).   

(5) To be eligible to receive discretionary STIF moneys for a real property Capital Asset, such as a transit 

facility, bus barn, maintenance facility, land, or administration building, a Public Transportation Service 

Provider shall demonstrate in its grant application one or more of the following: 

(a) Recipient or Sub‐Recipient ownership of the property upon which the Capital Asset will be 

located;  

(b) Recipient or Sub‐Recipient possession of an executed lease agreement for the property 

location that will be in place for the useful life of the Capital Asset;  

(c) Recipient or Sub‐Recipient possession of an executed lien on the property for the useful life 

of the Capital Asset;  

(d) In the case of a Project which will utilize property owned by a local city, county or 

government, an executed intergovernmental agreement with the property owner guaranteeing 

ongoing use for the duration of the useful life of the Capital Asset; or 

(e) In the case of a Project to purchase land, an option to purchase the land identified in the 

Project. 

(6) Recipients shall: 

(a) Establish useful life standards for Capital Assets acquired pursuant to their discretionary 

grant agreements which meet or exceed the duration of those established by the Agency. 

(b) Use the Agency's published procedures or substantially similar procedures and ensure that 

Sub‐Recipients use the same procedures for the disposition of Capital Assets acquired with STIF 

moneys.  

(c) Retain the net proceeds from a sale or other disposition of a Capital Asset to reinvest in a 

future STIF capital Project or return the net proceeds to the Agency.  Net proceeds are the 

disposal proceeds less original value, less depreciation, less disposal costs.  If non‐STIF funds 

were used in the original purchase, then only the proportion representing STIF contribution to 

the purchase is subject to this rule. 



 

 

March 27, 2018    Page 33 of 33 
 

(d) Establish written procedures to ensure that a Capital Asset is maintained in safe operating 

condition. 

(e) Maintain insurance coverage, or require Sub‐Recipients to maintain insurance coverage, that 

meets or exceeds the standards in ORS 806.070.  

(f) Ensure that vehicles purchased in whole or in part with STIF moneys are titled with the 

Oregon Department of Transportation Driver and Motor Vehicle Services Division pursuant to 

ORS 803.045 and supporting rules, with the Agency listed as a security interest holder, subject to 

the following additional requirements: 

(A) If the vehicle is registered in the name of a Sub‐Recipient receiving the vehicle, and 

the Sub‐Recipient is not a Qualified Entity or Public Transportation Service Provider, 

then the Qualified Entity or Public Transportation Service Provider must be listed on the 

vehicle title as the primary security interest holder. 

(B) If the vehicle was purchased with federal funds in addition to STIF moneys, and the 

federal funding source requires the vehicle to be titled otherwise than provided in this 

rule, then the federal titling requirements prevail. 

(7) A Recipient shall notify the Agency of the sale, transfer or other disposition of a Capital Asset 

purchased with discretionary STIF moneys and shall report the use of proceeds, if any, from the sale to 

the Agency. 

(8) Capital Assets purchased in whole or part with STIF discretionary moneys must be managed as 

described in this rule, unless otherwise specified in a written grant agreement approved by the Agency. 

  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

Stats. Implemented: ORS 184.758(1)(b), ORS 184.758(1)(c), ORS 184.758(3)(a), ORS 184.758(3)(b) 

 

 





(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)







(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)









(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) 
(A)









(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)







(b) (1) (A)











(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)
(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Ambulance Service Area (ASA) Advisory Committee 
Appointments to give ASA Advisory Committee enough members for a quorum.  
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐         
If No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa: July 18, 2018 DEPARTMENT:  Admin     TIME NEEDED:  5 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  APPOINTMENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON:                            TODAY’S DATE:        2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) The ASA Advisory is composed of 
9 members. Currently there are 7 vacancies. The vacancies are for these positions—EMT, 
Fire Department, Law Enforcement, RN w/ER experience, Dr w/ER experience, and 2 lay 
persons.  
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Redacted Applications for Beth Barker-Hildago, lay person; George T. Fisher, lay 
person;  Jim Watson, Fire Dept;  Dan Brattain, EMT; and Richard Burton, either EMT, Fire 
Dept or lay person (select 4)  
(2) Order 
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR   BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  APPOINTMENT   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us




(b) (1) (A)





(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)



 

 

Please complete both pages of this form. Information submitted as part of this application is available and shall be 
considered public information as it pertains to Oregon Public Records.  

NOTE: A separate application may be required for each Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force for which 
you are applying. 

Please print or type clearly 

Name: _____________________________________________________________Date: ________________________ 

Please indicate which Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force on which you are interested in serving. 

 Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee Coos Curry Housing Authority 
Board of Property Tax Appeals Fair Board 
Brookings Airport Advisory Committee Farm Board of Review 
Budget Committee Local Public Safety Coordinating Council 
Building Codes Appeal Board Planning Commission 
CCD Business Development Corporation RSVP Advisory Board 
Citizen Involvement Committee Solid Waste Advisory Committee 
Compensation Board Veteran’s Advisory Council 
  
 Other 
 

Are you currently serving on a Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force for Curry County? 

 Yes      No      If Yes, list which committee(s): 
_____________________________________________________________ 

What experience, training or qualifications do you have for this particular Board, Commission, Council, Committee or 
Task Force? ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

What community topics concern you that relate to this Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force? ______ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Describe your previous experience in this appointed position or a similar position: _____________________________ 

Commissioners 

Application for Volunteer Boards, Commissions, Councils, 
Committees or Task Forces 

Board of Curry County Commissioners 
94235 Moore Street, Suite 122 
Gold Beach, OR 97444 
Phone: 541-247-3296  Fax: 541-247-2718  Email: BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other volunteer activities: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Does your schedule allow you to attend daytime meetings?       Yes      No 

Does your schedule allow you to attend evening meetings?      Yes      No 

Does your schedule limit the days you could attend meetings?                   Yes      No 
If Yes, please explain________________________________________________________________________________ 

Have you ever been convicted of a crime?      Yes      No 
If Yes, please explain________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________          ___________________________ 
Signature                    Date 

My signature above indicates my desire to serve Curry County in a voluntary capacity as a member of one of its 
Boards, Commissions, Councils, Committees or Task Forces. I understand that there is no financial compensation for 
serving. 

Thank you for your application.  

Please return your completed application to the Curry County Commissioners’ Office at the address or email listed on 
page one of this form or you may submit your application on the county’s website at www.co.curry.or.us.  

 

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


Please complete both pages of this form. Information submitted as part of this application is available and shall be 
considered public information as it pertains to Oregon Public Records.  

NOTE: A separate application may be required for each Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force for which 
you are applying. 

Please print or type clearly 

Name: _____________________________________________________________Date: ________________________ 

Please indicate which Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force on which you are interested in serving. 

 Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee Coos Curry Housing Authority
Board of Property Tax Appeals Fair Board
Brookings Airport Advisory Committee Farm Board of Review
Budget Committee Local Public Safety Coordinating Council
Building Codes Appeal Board Planning Commission
CCD Business Development Corporation RSVP Advisory Board
Citizen Involvement Committee Solid Waste Advisory Committee
Compensation Board Veteran’s Advisory Council

 Other

Are you currently serving on a Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force for Curry County? 

 Yes      No      If Yes, list which committee(s):
_____________________________________________________________ 

What experience, training or qualifications do you have for this particular Board, Commission, Council, Committee or 
Task Force? ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

What community topics concern you that relate to this Board, Commission, Council, Committee or Task Force? ______ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Describe your previous experience in this appointed position or a similar position: _____________________________ 

Commissioners 

Application for Volunteer Boards, Commissions, Councils, 
Committees or Task Forces 

Board of Curry County Commissioners 
94235 Moore Street, Suite 122 
Gold Beach, OR 97444 
Phone: 541-247-3296  Fax: 541-247-2718  Email: BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us 

I am a member of Cal-Ore Life Flight and am still concerned with the 
efficacy of ambulance service as it relates to the flights of Cal-Ore Life Flight departing
from Curry County’s regional and rural airports.  I served  20 years as the Executive Director of the 
Georgia State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, and in that capacity 
I formed, managed, and participated in many committees which dealt with analyzing the effectiveness 
and efficiency of the delivery of engineering and surveying services to the citizens of Georgia.  Also, I 
have past experience with this Committee.

Speed and efficacy of  ambulance service in my region.

I have previously served in this 
position as a public member.

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us
GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text
George T. Fisher

GEORGE
Typewritten Text
July 3, 2018

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text
x

GEORGE
Typewritten Text
X

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text
Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee

GEORGE
Typewritten Text

GEORGE
Typewritten Text



__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Other volunteer activities: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Does your schedule allow you to attend daytime meetings?   Yes      No

Does your schedule allow you to attend evening meetings?  Yes      No

Does your schedule limit the days you could attend meetings?  Yes      No
If Yes, please explain________________________________________________________________________________ 

Have you ever been convicted of a crime?  Yes      No
If Yes, please explain________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________      ___________________________ 
Signature   Date 

My signature above indicates my desire to serve Curry County in a voluntary capacity as a member of one of its 
Boards, Commissions, Councils, Committees or Task Forces. I understand that there is no financial compensation for 
serving. 

Thank you for your application. 

Please return your completed application to the Curry County Commissioners’ Office at the address or email listed on 
page one of this form or you may submit your application on the county’s website at www.co.curry.or.us.  

X

     X

X

X

George T. Fisher July 3, 2018Available on request

Wild Rivers Animal Rescue

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

http://www.co.curry.or.us/




(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)



 

1 | O R D E R  A S A  C O M M I T T E E  A P P O I N T M E N T S   
 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 
 
In the Matter of an Order of   ) 
Appointments to the Ambulance ) ORDER NO. ______________ 
Service Area (ASA) Advisory  ) 
Committee    ) 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2.01.200 of Ordinance No. 04-13, which is part of the County Code, creates a 
Curry County Ambulance Service Area (ASA) Advisory Committee (hereinafter, the “Committee”) ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there are currently vacancies on the Committee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioner’s advertised vacancies on the ASA Advisory Committee,  
on the Curry County Website, and by publishing in the Curry County Reporter on ___________                    
and in the Coastal Pilot on _____________________ asking interested persons to apply; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Beth Barker Hidalgo applied for the vacant position on the Committee as member of 
the public not otherwise included in other categories listed (member at large); and  ( I SEE Beth on the 
list again that’s why I left her name in her and perhaps for the same position?) 
 
 WHEREAS, Dan Brattain applied for the vacant position as a 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, Richard Burton applied for the vacant position as a 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, George Fischer applied for the vacant position as a 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, Jim Watson applied for the vacant position as a 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY ORDERS as 
follows: 

1) That Beth Barker Hidalgo is appointed to the Curry County Ambulance Service Area Advisory 
Committee as a member of the public not otherwise included in other categories listed with 
term to expire on ______________________________. 



 

2 | O R D E R  A S A  C O M M I T T E E  A P P O I N T M E N T S   
 

2) That Dan Brattain is appointed to the Curry County Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee 
as a _______________________________________with term to expire on ________________. 

3) Richard Burton is appointed to the Curry County Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee as 
a _______________________________________with term to expire on __________________. 

4) George Fischer is appointed to the Curry County Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee as 
a ____________________________________with term to expire on _____________________. 

5) Jim Watson is appointed to the Curry County Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee as a 
______________________________________with term to expire on ____________________.   

 
 DATED this 18th day of July, 2018.   
 
      BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Sue Gold, Chair  
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair  
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Legal Counsel 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET-End of Year 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  07/12/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) To recognize revenues and costs 
listed on attached Memo. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Memo 
(2) Resolution 
(3) Supplemental Budget (Exhibits A through O) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


                                                                                                          

Memo 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Louise Kallstrom, County Accountant 

Date: July 12, 2018 

Re: End of Fiscal Year 2017-2018  – Supplemental Budget #17 

  
 
Supplemental Budget #17 
 

(Hearing) Exhibit A Fund 1.10 Elections – To recognize revenues and costs of (3) special 
elections during Fiscal Year 2017-18. 

 
Exhibit B Fund 1.10 Tax Collections – To recognize cost of payroll after union 

negotiations in Fiscal Year 2017-18 and to correct for new office costs for tax 
collection. 

 
Exhibit C Fund 1.10 Planning – To recognize cost of payroll after union negotiations in 

Fiscal Year 2017-18 and to correct for office costs for planning. 
 
(Hearing) Exhibit D Fund 2.51 Grant #07-All Care Planning – To recognize revenue from All Care 

and to budget a line item to return the funds. 
 
(Hearing) Exhibit E Fund 1.21 Clerk Recording Reserve – To budget to cover non capital 

expenditures related to office move.  
 
Exhibit F Fund 1.25 Law Library – To recognize cost of payroll after union negotiations 

in Fiscal Year 2017-18. 
 
Exhibit G Fund 1.37 Towers Operations and Maint – To correct for costs of Day 

Wireless services, electricity costs and diesel fuel costs. 
 
(Hearing) Exhibit H Fund 1.30 Airport Operations – To correct for costs of repairs and 

maintenance and electricity costs. 
 
Exhibit I Fund 2.12 Victim Assist-Criminal Fines – To recognize cost of payroll after 

union negotiations in Fiscal Year 2017-18. 
 



2 

(Hearing) Exhibit J Fund 2.12 Victim Assist-VOCA Basic – To recognize cost of payroll after 
union negotiations in Fiscal Year 2017-18 and to correct budgeted revenue 
line item. 

 
(Hearing) Exhibit K Fund 2.14 Fair-Event Center – To recognize cost of payroll and capital 

purchases after change in manager personnel. 
 
(Hearing) Exhibit L Fund 2.22 Vehicle Replacement – To correct for costs of broker fees for sales 

of vehicles. 
 
(Hearing) Exhibit M Fund 2.32 Cable TV PEG Access – To correct for costs of Blue Room and 

Hearing room equipment and hallway speakers. 
 
Exhibit N Fund 2.33 Building Repair and Maintenance – To recognize cost of payroll 

after union negotiations in Fiscal Year 2017-18. 
 
(Hearing) Exhibit O Fund 3.48 County Schools – To recognize receipt of SRS Funds and the 

expenditure line of pass through of these funds to County School Districts. 
 
 
 
 
 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibits A through O for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to 
cover expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   18th  day of July, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 

































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  SHERIFF-CHETCO FIRE COST REIMBURSEMENT 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  07/12/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Recognize USFS reimbursement 
for Chetco Fire and establish Sheriff Department payroll costs budget. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Resolution 
(2) Supplemental Budget (Exhibit A) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibit A for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to cover 
expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   18th  day of July, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 





CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  FEMA Grant-CHETCO FIRE COST REIMBURSEMENT 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  07/12/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Set up Grant #44 to record costs 
of Chetco Fire reimbursable by FEMA. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Resolution 
(2) Supplemental Budget (Exhibit A) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibit A for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to cover 
expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   18th  day of July, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 





CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  FEMA Grant-CHETCO FIRE COST REIMBURSEMENT 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/18 DEPARTMENT: Finance  TIME NEEDED:  10  min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
 

CONTACT PERSON:  Louise Kallstrom  PHONE/EXT: 3232 TODAY’S DATE:  07/12/18 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Set up Grant #45 to record Road 
Department costs of Chetco Fire reimbursable by FEMA. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Resolution 
(2) Supplemental Budget (Exhibit A) 
    
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☒File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 
PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☐ APPROVED FOR ________  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:     
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REALLOCATION OF ) 
APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN CATEGORIES ) RESOLUTION 
IN THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET )  
 
 
WHEREAS, there exists a need to transfer appropriated spending authority in the Curry 
County budget between expenditure categories for the purpose of providing for costs 
beyond the amount that was anticipated in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget: and, 
 
WHEREAS, such increase and reallocation of appropriation is allowed under ORS 294.471; 
now, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget for Curry County be modified as 
detailed in Exhibit A for the specific purpose of providing appropriations to cover 
expenditures through June 30, 2018. 
 
Dated this   18th  day of July, 2018. 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
 Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
 
 _____________________________  
Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel 





CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Second Reading of Ordinance Creating Curry County 
Parks and Recreation Committee 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐       
 

AGENDA DATEa: 07/18/2018 DEPARTMENT: Parks  TIME NEEDED:  10min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  OLD BUSINESS, ETC 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain: See Brief Background below 
CONTACT PERSON:  JHuttl PHONE/EXT: x 3218 TODAY’S DATE:  06/29/2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) At the May 30, 2018 meeting, the 
Board voted to approve the ordinance creating the Parks and Recreation Committee.  
State law requires two readings more than 13 days apart on non-emergency ordinances.  
This second reading meets state law for adopting county non-emergency ordinances. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Ordinance adopting Article Five Division Two Curry County Codified Ordinances 
(2) Exhibit A:  Article Five: Division Two: Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee 
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR 07/18/2018 BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because  Board direction 
  
ASSIGNED TO:  OLD BUSINESS, ETC   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Amendment to Grant Agreement with State of Oregon 
for Brookings Head Start Project – extending deadlines; changing budget line items 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  July 18, 2018 DEPARTMENT: BOC /Legal TIME NEEDED: 5 mins 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  OLD BUSINESS, ETC 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: Brief background below. 
CONTACT PERSON: JHuttl PHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 07/12/2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Board is familiar with this item.  
This amendment extends the time to perform until August 2019 and increases acquisition 
budget line item while reducing construction line item.   
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Amendment 
(2) Budget 
(3) Order 

INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
      
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Amendment Number 1 C14014, A-01 Curry County Amend.docx Page 1 of 3 

Amendment Number 1 
Project Name: Brookings Head Start 

This amendment is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and through the 
Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority of the Oregon Business Development Department (“IFA”), and 
the Curry County (“Recipient”), and amends the Grant Contract between Recipient and IFA, Project 
Number C14014, dated 9 June 2015, (“Contract”) for the above-named Project. Capitalized terms not 
defined in this amendment have the meanings assigned to them by the Contract. 

Recital: The purpose of this amendment is to extend the time to complete the project with an updated 
work plan and to adjust the budget by moving $42,700 from construction to land acquisition and to 
increase other / matching funds by adding $45,486 to the architectural budget line item. 

The parties agree as follows: 
1. Delete the first sentence of Section 4.A. of the Contract and replace it with the following: 

 A. The approved grant activities must be completed no later than 15 September 2019 (“Project 
Completion Date”). Project activities must be completed according to the following schedule: 

Task Deadline 

Architectural / Engineering Contract executed by Recipient 31 May 2018 

Architectural / Engineering Contract Documents Complete 30 Sep 2018 

Bid Opening 31 Oct 2018 

Execute Agreement between Owner and General Contractor; 
Notice to Proceed 20 Nov 2018 

Abatement of Hazardous Materials; Demolition of interior finishes 
and non-load bearing components 31 Dec 2018 

Interior Renovation including new framing and plumbing, 
ductwork and wiring rough-in work 20 Mar 2019 

Substantial Completion of interior spaces only; Exterior Envelope 
Repair, Replacement and Reroof 31 May 2019 

Head Start staff, materials and equipment return to facility; 
Temporary access, as necessary, for safe operation of Head Start 
services 

16 Jun 2019 

Interior Punch List Items Completed; M/E Systems Balanced and 
Operational; Exterior Building Painting; Site Hardscape: Paving, 
Walks and Planters, et cetera 

31 Jul 2019 

Landscape Work - Soils Preparation, Planting and Protections; Play 
Area Restoration and Cleanup; Substantial Completion of Exterior 20 Aug 2019 

Final Completion and Project Closeout 27 Aug 2019 



Amendment Number 1 C14014, A-01 Curry County Amend.docx Page 2 of 3 

2. Delete Exhibit D (Project Budget) and replace it with the following new Exhibit D: 

EXHIBIT D - PROJECT BUDGET 
 

 OBDD Funds Other / Matching Funds 

Activity Approved Budget Approved Budget 

Land Acquisition $355,700 $0 

Architectural 133,440 45,486 

Construction 977,300.23 0 

Construction Contingencies 93,000 0 

Labor Standards / Environmental Review 30,000 0 

Grant Administration 17185 25,000 0 

Legal / Permits 21,723 0 

Construction Inspections 4,000 0 

BOLI Fee 0 1,000 

Total $1,640,163.23 $46,486 

IFA will have no obligation under this amendment, unless within 60 days after receipt, the Recipient delivers 
to IFA the following items, each in form and substance satisfactory to IFA and its Counsel: 

(i) this amendment duly executed by an authorized officer of the Recipient; and 

(ii) such other certificates, documents, opinions and information as IFA may reasonably require. 



Amendment Number 1 C14014, A-01 Curry County Amend.docx Page 3 of 3 

Except as specifically provided above, this amendment does not modify the Contract, and Contract shall remain 
in full force and effect during the term thereof. This amendment is effective on the date it is fully executed and 
approved as required by applicable law. 

  
STATE OF OREGON 

acting by and through the 
Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority 

CURRY COUNTY 

775 Summer Street NE Suite 200 
Salem OR  97301-1280 
Phone 503-798-5076 

94235 Moore Street Suite 122 
Gold Beach OR  97444 
Phone 541-247-3296 

By:   By:  
 Chris Cummings, Assistant Director 

Economic Development 
 The Honorable Sue Gold, Chair 

Date:   Date:  
 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORS 291.047: 

Not required by OAR 137-045-0050  
 



Recipient: Project Number: C14014
315-09

Project Name:
Request Number:

Funding Programs:
Final Draw?

Reporting Period: to OBDD Reference: IDIS # 17186

All Funds

(A) (B) (C) (D) (F) (G) (H) (I) = [F-G-H] (J) = [C+D+G+H]

Activity Approved Budget Prior 
Disbursements

Current
Request Approved Budget Prior

Expenditures
Current

Expenditure Balance Disbursed & 
Expended

Land Acquisition $355,700 $5,700 $5,700
Architectural 133,440 93,926 45,486 45,486 93,926
Construction 977,300.23
Construction Contingencies 93,000
Labor Standards / Environmental 
Review 30,000 12,975 12,975

Grant Administration 17185 25,000 5,000 5,000
Legal / Permits 21,723 5,153 5,153
Construction Inspections 4,000
BOLI Fee 1,000 1,000

Total $1,640,163.23 $122,754.00 $46,486.00 $46,486.00 $122,754.00

Loan  /  Grant   /  Forgivable
Date

Date

Date Date

Amendment Number 1

17,025

______________________________

______________________________

______________________________

Certification:  We certify that the data are correct and that the amount requested is not in 
excess of current needs. 

$ _________________________

Curry County

Oregon Community Development Block Grant

$350,000
39,514

Brookings Head Start

20,000
16,570

977,300.23
93,000

Other / Matching Funds (Enter Whole Dollars Only)OBDD Funds (Enter Whole Dollars Only)

(E) = [B-C-D]

Balance

______________________________

4,000

Authorized Signature & Title

For OBDD Use Only:  I have reviewed this request and approve payment to the above mentioned recipient in 
the amount(s) listed below.

$1,517,409.23

$ _________________________

Contract Administrator Signature

______________________________

______________________________

Manager Signature

______________________________

______________________________

OBDD Disbursement Request Amendment Number 1

Funding Type Funding Program

7 July 2018.xlsx

(If more than one source of funds)

Dollar Amount

$ _________________________

$ _________________________

E-Mail Address

Project Contact for Payment Notification

541-672-6728 X302Tracy Loomis
Phone Number

Authorized Signature & Title

Yes No 



1 | O r d e r  A m e n d m e n t  N o .  1  H e a d  S t a r t  C o n t r a c t    
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
In the Matter of an Order   ) 
Authorizing Amendment No. 1 ) 
to Grant Contract Between   ) 
State of Oregon and Curry  ) ORDER NO. ________________ 
County for Brookings Head  ) 
Start Project     )  
  
 WHEREAS, the State of Oregon, acting by and through the Oregon 
Infrastructure Finance Authority of the Oregon Business Development 
Department (IFA), and Curry County has a grant contract between them, project 
Number C14014, dated June 9, 2015 for the Brookings Head Start Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, an appraisal for acquisition of the building came in higher 
than the original budget and more funding was required to acquire the property; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the replacement architect construction budget reflected 
construction savings and extended time requirements; and    
 
 WHEREAS, an amendment is needed to extend the time to complete the 
project with an updated work plan and to adjust the budget by moving $42,700 
from construction to land acquisition and to increase other / matching funds by 
adding $46,486 to the architectural budget line item; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY ORDERS approval of Amendment Number 1 to the contract dated June 
9, 2015 between State of Oregon (IFA) and Curry County.        
 
 DATED this 18th day of July, 2018. 
 

BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      
     ________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
Approved as to Form: 
 
     _________________________________ 
______________________ Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel  
     _________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Resolution to Issue Notice and Set Hearing on petition 
to Annex Territory to Harbor Water PUD 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If  No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  07/18/2018 DEPARTMENT: Legal TIME NEEDED:  10 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  RESOLUTION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain: See Below 
CONTACT PERSON: J Huttl PHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 07/12/2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) A petition to annex territory into 
the Harbor Water PUD has been filed.  This resolution established a hearing date and 
requires notice to be issued and mailed to all persons in the territory to be annexed.  
 

FILES ATTACHED:    
(1) Resolution 
(2) Map of Territory proposed to be annexed 
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☐No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR 07/18/2018 BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda 
because        
  
ASSIGNED TO:  RESOLUTION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 1 Resolution setting Annexation Hearing – Harbor Water PUD 

 

IN THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OR CURRY, OREGON 

 

In the Matter of a Resolution  ) 
Setting a Hearing on a Petition ) 
For Annexation to the Harbor  )  RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
Water PUD District Pursuant to ) 
ORS 198.705 to ORS 198.955 ) 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 10, 2018, Chief Petitioner, filed with the Board of Curry 
County Commissioners a petition for annexation to the Harbor Water PUD District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the petition was filed pursuant to ORS 198.705 to ORS 198.955; 
and d  
 
 WHEREAS, the property that is the subject of the petition is described on the 
attached Exhibit “A” which is incorporated by reference; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the petition meets the requirements for annexation under ORS 
198.750 to ORS 198.850and is otherwise sufficient under the Principal Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, ORS 198.800(1)(b) requires the County Board to set a hearing on 
the petition not sooner than 30 days nor later than 50 days after the date on which the 
petition is filed; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLVES THAT: 
 

1) A hearing on the petition for annexation of the property described on the 
attached Exhibit “A” into the Harbor Water PUD District will be held on 
Wednesday, August 15, 2018 at 10:30A.M. in the Commissioners’ Hearing 
Room, Courthouse Annex, 94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon  97444. 
 

2) Written notice containing the information required in ORS 198.705 to ORS 
198.955 of the hearing shall be mailed to the Chief Petitioner, all owners of 
property within the area proposed to be annexed and to the board of the 
affected district. 

 



 2 Resolution setting Annexation Hearing – Harbor Water PUD 

 

3) Notice of the hearing shall be posted in at least three public places and 
published in two insertions in a newspaper  in accordance with ORS 198.800 
(2)  

 

DATED this 18th day of July, 2018.   
 
 
 
 
      Board of Curry County Commissioners 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Sue Gold, Chair 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair  
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Court Boice, Commissioner  

 
 









CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Excess travel collection 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  , 2018 DEPARTMENT:      Administration           TIME NEEDED:  20min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☒  No ☐    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON:     Clark Schroeder                       TODAY’S DATE:        July 12 2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1) Memo to Commissioners from Administrator Schroeder 
(2)  
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR   BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
Clark Schroeder 
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 
 
Curry County Administrator 
 
Clark Schroeder, County Administrator 
schroederc@co.curry.or.us  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
TO: Curry County Commissioners: 
 
July 13th 2018 
 
RE:  Travel Policy Compliance: 
 
This memo is to update the Board with new information and confirm board commitment 
to pursue enforcement regarding the Curry County Board of Commissioners and 
elected official travel regulations, allowable expenses and reimbursement rates. (See 
attachment) 
 
There are two main issues with compliance which I see.  First is that Commissioner 
Boice continues to use a county vehicle for travel within Curry County, which is not 
allowed per B(1)(a). The second concern is collection of County funds which were 
expended in excess of budget amount.  
 
Issue Number One: Violation of Travel Policy Using County Vehicle for Travel 
within the County Curry County Travel Policy Section B(1)(a) states: 

1. a. Travel within the County not covered by County funds. 
The County will not expend funds for Commissioner or Elected 
Official Training or Meeting travel within Curry County. This section 
does not apply to the Assessor while conducting assessments. 

Commissioner Boice continues to violate this Curry County policy. 
 
Issue Number Two: Past Travel Violations; New Information and 
Direction/Discussion of Options 
Commissioner Boice has exceeded the travel budget for the Commissioners by an 
estimated $4,000 to $6,000 for fiscal year 2017-2018 which ended June 30th. The exact 
amount is not known as of this writing due to County staff collecting data from the end of 
June. We are waiting for County credit card statements and any receipts not turned in 
as of yet.  I would anticipate this being completed by August 31. Regardless, the 
amount owed to the County will need to be collected from Mr. Boice after a final number 
has been determined.  
 
 

94235 Moore Street/Suite #122 
Gold Beach, OR  97444 

541-247-3287, 541-247-2718 Fax 
800-243-1996 www.co.curry.or.us  
 



There are three main avenues for the County to enforce compliance with said policy. 
1.  File small claims complaint.  This would be the least expensive and quickest 

option for collection of excess spending. Outcomes in small claims court have the 
greatest variability in results as attorneys are not used. In this case, a law firm 
would advise but would not be in court.  Estimated costs of $1,000-$2,000. 

2. Send a demand letter and then file a complaint in circuit court.  Since this 
collection is less than $50,000 the file would be sent to mandatory, non-binding 
arbitration by the Court.  After this either party could request going to trial. This 
process might take 6-9 months. Estimated cost in the multiple tens of thousands 
of dollars.  

3. Issue fines under section 8 of the travel policy, then file a debt collection action to 
recoup the fines.  This would involve issuing citations which Commissioner Boice 
could challenge in circuit court.  This process would be like a traffic ticket where 
lawyers are not used and the Court makes a decision based on what the parties 
testify to. This action would address the continual use of County vehicles against 
County policy. Estimated cost of $1000 - $2,000.  

 
Unless the Board directs otherwise, I intend to engage the law firm Dunn Carney Allen 
Higgins & Tongue LLP to advise on going to small claims court and issue a citation for 
in County travel violation. Their rates are $200/hour for paralegal and $315, hour for 
attorneys. This is the least expensive option to seek reimbursement and compliance. I 
have been told by the law firm that getting attorney’s fees reimbursed from the 
defendant in any scenario would not be likely.  The County budgeted five thousand 
dollars in Non-departmental legal fees and twenty thousand dollars in Professional 
services.  These funds are also being utilized to pay for the Labor Lawyer who is 
negotiating the union contracts for the County. If between these two concerns the 
budget is surpassed, a supplemental budget will be required.  
 
If the Commissioners do not want me to pursue these options, the Board should give 
direction to the County Administrator, or direct to research further and bring back 
additional avenues. 
 
 
 
Clark Schroeder 
 
  
 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018 
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Appointment to the Coos Curry Housing Board 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐       
If No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting 

AGENDA DATEa:   July 18, 2018 DEPARTMENT:   Admin              TIME NEEDED:  5 min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  CONSENT 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☐    If no memo, explain: 
CONTACT PERSON:   Clark Schroeder        TODAY’S DATE:  July 13,   2018 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached) Karen Gilmartin has applied to 
another term, expiring and Jeri Lynn Thompson has applied to be appointed, term 
expiring  

FILES ATTACHED: 
(1) Redacted Applications of Karen Gilmartin and Jeri Lynn Thompson
(2) Order to Appoint Karen Gilmartin and Jeri Lynn Thompson
(3)
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR
☐File with County Clerk  Name: 
☐Send Printed Copy to:  Address:    
☐Email a Digital Copy to:  City/State/Zip: 
☐Other  Phone:
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR  BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  

ASSIGNED TO:  CONSENT 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us




(b) (1) (A)





(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)

(b) (1) (A)



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE    ) 
APPOINTMENT OF Two (2)   ) ORDER NO. 
MEMBER TO THE COOS CURRY )  
HOUSING AUTHORITY   ) 
 
 
 WHEREAS, two (2) positions have become vacant on the Coos Curry Housing 
Authority Board due to a term expiration and to a resignation and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Curry County Commissioners announced the vacancy, 
and invited interested persons to apply; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Karen Gilmartin and Jeri Lynn Thompson has applied and indicated 
her willingness to serve; 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Jeri Lynn Thompson is 
appointed to the Coos Curry Housing Authority with said term to expire January 3, 2021 
and Karen Gilmartin with said term to expire April 29, 2022. 
 
 DATED this 18th day of July, 2018.   
 
 
     CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Chair 
      
 
     _______________________________________ 
     Thomas Huxley, Vice Chair 
 
      
     _______________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
Reviewed as to Form: 
 
 
________________________________ 



John Huttl, Curry County Legal Counsel  
 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1  Revision 3-22-2018  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
PROPOSED AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Executive session to discuss labor negotiations 
 

TIMELY FILED    Yes ☒ No  ☐              
If No, justification to include with next BOC Meeting  
 

AGENDA DATEa:  July 18th  , 2018 DEPARTMENT:   Administration  TIME NEEDED:  25 
min 
(aSubmit by 9AM five days prior to the next General Meeting (six days if a holiday falls 
within that five day period)) RECOMMENDED AGENDA CATEGORY  PRESENTATION 
 

MEMO ATTACHED       Yes  ☐  No ☒    If no memo, explain:  
CONTACT PERSON:       Clark Schroeder                     TODAY’S DATE:   July 13     2018 
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTE: (If no memo attached)  
Executive session to discuss labor negotiations. 
 

FILES ATTACHED:     
(1)  
(2)  
(3)  
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
☒No Additional Activity Required     OR 

☐File with County Clerk    Name:     
☐Send Printed Copy to:          Address:                      
☐Email a Digital Copy to:            City/State/Zip:        

☐Other  Phone:                   
Note: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
 

PART II – COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW 
☒ APPROVED FOR   BOC MEETING   ☐ Not Approved for BOC Agenda because  
Clark Schroeder 
  
ASSIGNED TO:  PRESENTATION   
   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us

	2018_07_18 1 DRAFT Agenda D3
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

	2018_07_18 4 Consent Calendar Items 62 pages
	2018_07_18 4 Admin 5a AGRS Minutes
	2018_07_18 4 Admin 5b Minutes of April 25 2018  Special Meeting REVIEWED
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

	2018_07_18 4 Admin 3a AGRS True Lock
	2018_07_18 4 Admin 3b ORDER approving contract - true lock and security
	2018_07_18 4 Admin 3c Contract - True Lock and Security
	2018_07_18 4 Admin 4a Clark Schroeder Credit Card Request
	2018_07_18 4 Comm Dev 1a AGRS Revision 2018_03_22 CURRENT.com dev activity report June 2018
	2018_07_18 4 Comm Dev 1b 06.2018 Community Development Department Activity Report
	2018_07_18 4 Finance 1a Order 20511 Budget Officer Filed
	2018_07_18 4 Finance 1b ORDER Appointing Budget Officer UPDATED LKallstrom 07112018 1448
	2018_07_18 4 Sheriff IGAs for Sixes, Agness, Cedar and Ophir
	2018_07_18 4 Sheriff 1a AGRS_Dispatch IGA's_FY18-19_Final_07122018
	2018_07_18 4 Sheriff 1b Sixes River Fire_signed_07122018
	2018_07_18 4 Sheriff 1c Agness Fire_signed_07122018
	2018_07_18 4 Sheriff 1d Cedar Valley_N Bank Fire_signed_07122018
	2018_07_18 4 Sheriff 1e Ophir Fire_signed_07122018

	2018_07_18 4 Surveyor 1a AGRS  June 2018
	2018_07_18 4 Surveyor 1b Monthly activity report June 2018
	2018_07_18 4 Counsel 1a AGRS Retain D'Amore et al Opioid Lawsuit
	2018_07_18 4 Counsel 1b Contingent Fee Contract - Curry County D'Amore et al
	2018_07_18 4 Counsel 1c ORDER approving agreement D'Amore et al

	2018_07_18 5 Presentations CCPTSD and Curry Cty Audits 201 pages
	2018_07_18 5 Finance 9a  AGRS CCPTSD Audit Presentation
	2018_07_18 5 Finance 9b Curry County Public Transit Service District Finanacials- 2017
	2018_07_18 5 Finance 9c Curry County Public Transit Service District Management Letter- 2017
	2018_07_18 5 Finance 8a AGRS Curry County Audit Presentation
	2018_07_18 5 Finance 8b Curry County Financials- 2017
	2018_07_18 5 Finance 8c Curry County Board Letter- 2017

	2018_07_18 6 Administrative Actions Combined 80 pages
	2018_07_18 6 Admin 2a AGRS CCPTSD Appointments
	2018_07_18 6 Admin 2b ByLaws_AdvisoryBoard -revised KBernhardt 07112018  1556
	2018_07_18 6 Admin 2c Application addendum
	2018_07_18 6 Admin 2d STIF-Rules-DRAFT-Filed-Sec-of-State-March-2018
	2018_07_18 6 Admin 2e Proposed Applications for CCPTSD Committee REDACTED
	2018_07_18 6 Admin 5a AGRS Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee Appointments
	2018_07_18 6 Admin 5b ASA Applicants COMBINED
	2018_07_18 ASA 1 Beth Barker-Hildago App_Redacted
	2018_07_18 ASA 2 Dan Brattain REDACTED
	2018_07_18 ASA 3 Richard Burton REDACTED
	2018_07_18 ASA 4 George T Fisher REDACTED
	2018_07_18 ASA 5 Jim Watson REDACTED

	2018_07_18 6 Admin 5c ORDER Appointing ASA Committee Members July, 2018

	2018_07_18 7 Public Hearing Supplemental Budgets for County & Sheriff  28 pages
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 1 COMBINED 2a to 2d  Supplemental A to O
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 2a 17-18 AGRS Budget Appropriation Transfers A
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 2b 17-18 Budget Appropriatin MEMO-EOY Suppl Budgets
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	2018_07_18 7 Finance 2c 17-18 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION A
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 2d 17-18 Supplemental #17 Exhib A to O EOY

	2018_07_18 7 Finance 2 COMBINED 3a to 5c Sherff 18, 19 and 20
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 3a 17-18 AGRS Sheriff 18 Budget Appropriation Transfers B
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 3b 17-18 Sheriff 18 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 3c 17-18 Sheriff 18 Supplemental #18 Exhib A-Sheriff Chetco
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 4a 17-18 Sheriff 19  AGRS Budget Appropriation Transfers  C
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 4b 17-18 Sheriff 19 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION C
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 4c 17-18 Sheriff 19 Supplemental #19 Exhib A Chetco-FEMA
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 5a 17-18 Sheriff 20 AGRS Budget Appropriation Transfers D
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 5b 17-18 Sheriff 20 Budget Appropriation Transfers RESOLUTION D
	2018_07_18 7 Finance 5c Sheriff 20 17-18 Supplemental #20 Exhib A Chetco-FEMA-Road


	2018_07_18 8 Old Business 2nd Reading Parks & and Amendment Brookings Head Start Grant 7 pages
	2018_07_18 8 OB Counsel 1a AGRS Parks Recreation Advisory Committee Second Reading 071818
	2018_07_18 8 OB Counsel 2a AGRS Grant Amendment Brookings Head Start
	2018_07_18 8 OB Counsel 2b C14014, A-01 Curry County AMENDMENT
	Amendment Number 1
	Project Name: Brookings Head Start
	Recital: The purpose of this amendment is to extend the time to complete the project with an updated work plan and to adjust the budget by moving $42,700 from construction to land acquisition and to increase other / matching funds by adding $45,486 to...
	The parties agree as follows:

	2018_07_18 8 OB Counsel 2c C14014, A-01 Curry County Disbursement Request
	Budget

	2018_07_18 8 OB Counsel 2d ORDER Approving Amendment re Head Start Grant Agreement

	2018_07_18 9 Discussion-Direction Harbor Water PUD Annex 6 pages
	2018_07_18 9 Counsel 2a AGRS Resolution to Notice Hearing on petition to Annex to Harbor Water PUD
	2018_07_18 9 Counsel 2b Harbor Water PUD Annexation RESOLUTION setting hearing
	2018_07_18 9 Counsel 2c Exhibit A to resolution setting hearing Annexation

	2018_07_18 11 County Admin Updates 3 pages
	2018_07_18 11 Admin 7a AGRS Excess Travel spending collection
	2018_07_18 11 Admin 7b travel policy MEMO CSchroeder 07132018 0802
	Curry County Administrator


	2018_07_18 13 Admin 6a AGRS  executive session
	2018_07_18 1 Agenda D4 with Packet Pages.pdf
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

	2018_07_18 4 Coos Curry Housing Authority Appointments 7 pages.pdf
	2018_07_18 4 Coos-Curry Housing Board AGRS Appointment
	2018_07_18 Coos Curry Housing Jeri Lynn Thompson REDACTED
	2018_07_18 4 Coos-Curry Housing Authority Karen Gilmartin REDACTED
	2018_07_18 4 Coos-Curry Housing authority ORDER


	Name: RICHARD L. BURTON
	Date: 07/10/2018
	Ambulance Service Area Advisory Committee: Off
	Other: 
	undefined_11: Off
	Are you currently serving on a Board Commission Council Committee or Task Force for Curry County: Off
	If Yes list which committees: 
	Task Force 1: I am an EMT-B, Instructor of BLS and Wilderness Emergency Medicine, volunteer Firefighter with Ophir Fire, current
	Task Force 2: Cardiopulmonary Patient Care Tech and former ER Tech at Curry General, and am currently attending Indep. Univ. to obtain
	Task Force 3: my degree in Respiratory Therapy. I am licensed or certified in Emergency Vehicle Operation, tactical emergency (continued)
	What community topics concern you that relate to this Board Commission Council Committee or Task Force 2: Ensuring that the citizens of the county have the best and highest quality services for BLS, ACLS and non-emergent
	What community topics concern you that relate to this Board Commission Council Committee or Task Force 3: transport services readily available. 
	Describe your previous experience in this appointed position or a similar position: n/a, but I believe I am well qualified
	Check Box26: Yes
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box29: Off
	Check Box30: Off
	Check Box31: Off
	Check Box32: Off
	Check Box33: Off
	Check Box34: Off
	Check Box35: Off
	Check Box36: Off
	Check Box37: Off
	Check Box38: Off
	Check Box39: Off
	Check Box40: Off
	Check Box41: Off
	Check Box42: Off
	Check Box43: Off
	Check Box44: Yes
	Text7: and have much to contribute, given my experience & education. Continuing from above: casualty care
	Text8: , Basic Disaster Life Support. I also played a key organizational role in Operation Triton 32.
	Text9: Curry County Search and Rescue, Curry County Medical Reserve Corps, 
	Text10: Curry County CERT, American Red Cross Disaster Action Team, Community educator in Stop the
	Text11: Bleed, BLS, Heart Savers and First Aid.
	Text18: I can arrange needed time off from work with adequate advance notice
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Yes
	Text21: 07/10/2018
	Text25: 
	Check Box45: Yes
	Check Box46: Off
	Check Box47: Yes
	Check Box48: Off
	Check Box49: Yes
	Check Box50: Off


